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NZ ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS
BOARD

EXTERNAL REPORTING BOARD

Te Kawai Arahi Pirongo Mawaho

Memorandum
Date: 15 June 2018
To: NZASB Members
From: Tracey Crookston
Subject: 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

Recommendations?

1. We recommend that the Board:

(a) APPROVES for issue ED NZASB 2018-3 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards
(the ED); and

(b)  AGREES to propose an effective date of 1 January 2019 for the amendments.
Background

2. The ED and the Invitation to Comment (ITC) contain proposals to amend the accounting
standards applicable to Tier 1 and Tier 2 Public Benefit Entities (PBEs).

3. The amendments within ED 2018-3 comprise:

(a) Part C: amendments arising from Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 as set out in IPSAB’s
ED 65. ED 65 has two parts: Part | — General Improvements to IPSAS and Part Il — IFRS
Convergence Amendments;

(b) Part D: amendments arising from IASB amendments. These amendments are relevant
to PBE Standards but not IPSAS Standards;

(c) Part E: other New Zealand amendments; and
(d) Part F: editorial corrections.
4, We have considered the amendments made by the IPSASB in ED 65 and, in nearly all cases,

propose to incorporate equivalent amendments in the PBE Standards. We usually wait for the
IPSASB to finalise amendments before proposing equivalent amendments to PBE Standards.
This year we are proposing to seek feedback on the proposals concurrently with the IPSASB.
This will allow us to finalise a number of amendments in a more timely manner.

5. Where relevant, we have included RDR concessions that align with the RDR concessions in
NZ IFRS.

1 This memo refers to the work of the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and uses registered trademarks
of the IFRS Foundation (for example, IFRS® Standards, IFRIC® Interpretations and IASB® papers).
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Agenda Item 5.1

Most of the issues being addressed by the ED reflect amendments that have already been
made or proposed by an international board. They are therefore self-explanatory. In this
memo we have focused on a few matters where we are seeking feedback from the Board or
want to highlight something.

PBE IPSAS 16 Investment Property

7.

ED 65 proposes to delete paragraph 76 of IPSAS 16 Investment Property. Paragraph 76
requires that when an entity completes the construction or development of a self-constructed
investment property that will be carried at fair value, any difference between the fair value of
the property at that date and its previous carrying amount shall be recognised in surplus or
deficit.

ED 65 notes that, as a result of amendments made by Improvements to IPSASs, issued January
2010, investment property under construction is now within the scope of IPSAS 16. ED 65
proposes to delete paragraph 76 on the grounds that it is no longer required; it argues that as
investment property is now within the scope of IPSAS 16 it is no longer transferred from
another class of asset on completion of the construction.

As noted in the draft comment letter on ED 65 Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 (refer agenda
item 7.2) we think there may be circumstances in which this guidance is still required,
although there might be a better location for that guidance. For example, it could be relocated
to follow the section on Inability to determine fair value reliably (which is paragraph 63 in
IPSAS 16). We have not proposed to delete paragraph 76 and have highlighted this matter for
constituents.

Question for the Board

1.

Does the Board agree NOT to propose the deletion of PBE IPSAS 16 paragraph 767

PBE IPSAS 34 Separate Financial Statements

10.

The IPSASB is proposing to amend three aspects of IPSAS 34 Separate Financial Statements.
Specifically, the IPSASB is proposing to:

(a) address incorrect references, in paragraphs 14 and 30, to the consolidation of certain
balances of a controlled investment entity in separate financial statements. These
paragraphs need to be corrected because a controlling entity does not consolidate
items in its separate financial statements;

(b)  correct cross-references to paragraph 58 of IPSAS 35 (the reference should be to
paragraph 56 of IPSAS 35).

(c)  require disclosure of the accounting policy choice for measuring the investment in the
investment entity in the separate financial statements (that is, at fair value, cost or
using the equity method). We note that this is a new requirement. Up until now an
entity applying IPSAS 34 would have been required to disclose that accounting policy
choice only if it were significant.

Page 2 of 4
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11. We are proposing to amend PBE IPSAS 34 so that it aligns with the IPSASB’s proposed
amendments to IPSAS 34. There are two things we want to bring to the Board’s attention.

(a) The IPSASB is proposing to add a new accounting policy disclosure requirement — there
is a note to the Board in the ED to highlight this disclosure requirement.

(b)  We had already addressed one of the issues being addressed by the IPSASB when
PBE IPSAS 34 was first issued. The proposed amendments to PBE IPSAS 34 therefore
look slightly different to the proposals in ED 65 but the end effect is the same.

Question for the Board

2. Does the Board agree with the proposed amendments to PBE IPSAS 34?

New Zealand-specific amendments

12. The Board has previously looked at some, but not all, of the proposed New Zealand-specific
amendments set out in Part E of ED 2018-3. They are all relatively minor. The background to
each of these amendments is explained in Table 1 below.

Table 1

Standard New Zealand-specific amendments

PBE IFRS 5 Non-current The proposed amendment to paragraph 31 is to make it more relevant to the PBE

Assets Held for Sale and context.

Discontinued Operations 31. A component of an entity comprises operations or cash flows that can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes, from the rest of the
entity. In other words, a component of equity wilmay have been a cash-generating
unit.

PBE IAS 34 Interim The proposed amendments to paragraph 33 are to remove an incorrect quote

Financial Statements and replace it with a description of the recognition criteria in the

PBE Conceptual Framework.

33. An essential characteristic of revenue and expenses is that the related inflows and
outflows of assets and liabilities have already taken place. If those inflows or outflows
have taken place, the related revenue and expense are recognised; otherwise they

are not recognised. Fhe-PBE-Conceptual-Framewerksays-that “expenses-are

‘

The recognition criteria in the PBE Conceptual Framework are that an item satisfies
the definition of an element and can be measured in a way that achieves the
qualitative characteristics and takes account of constraints on information in
GPFRs.=fThe} PBE Conceptual Framework generally? does not allow the recognition of
items which do not meet the definition of assets or liabilities.=

2 Footnote 2 not shown

Page 3 of 4
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Standard New Zealand-specific amendments

PBE FRS 46 First-time The proposed amendments to PBE FRS 46 are to remove references to suites of
Adoption of standards that have been withdrawn (for example, NZ IFRS PBE and NZ IFRS RDR).
PBE Standards by Entities | The Board agreed to propose these amendments at its May 2018 meeting.
Previously Applying

NZ IFRS

Question for the Board

3. Does the Board agree with the New Zealand-specific amendments?

Effective date

13. As noted above, we are seeking feedback on a number of proposals concurrently with the
IPSASB. Comments on ED 65 are due to the IPSASB by 15 July 2018. We expect the IPSASB to
finalise an amending standard in September this year. The IPSASB has not publicly indicated
what the effective date for the amendments would be but, based on prior amending
standards, we expect that the amendments would be effective from 1 January 2019 (with
early application permitted in most cases).

14. We will continue to monitor the IPSASB’s project. Subject to the consideration of the
comments received on this ED, and the finalisation of the IPSASB’s amending standard, we
would also expect to issue an amending standard later this year. We plan to seek feedback on
a proposed effective date of 1 January 2019. As indicated in the relevant effective date
paragraphs within standards, earlier application is permitted in most instances.

Attachments

Agenda item 5.2: ITC and ED NZASB 2018-3 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

Page 4 of 4
200000.1




NZ ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS
BOARD

EXTERNAL REPORTING BOARD

Te Kawai Arahi Pirongo Mowaho

NZASB Exposure Draft 2018-3

2018 Omnibus Amendments to
PBE Standards

(NZASB ED 2018-3)

July 2018

200011.1



Agenda Item 5.2
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any error or omission from this document.
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Information for respondents

Invitation to Comment

The New Zealand Accounting Standards Board (NZASB)! is seeking comments on the specific matters
raised in this Invitation to Comment. We will consider all comments before finalising the
2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards.

If you want to comment, please supplement your opinions with detailed comments, whether
supportive or critical of the proposals, as both supportive and critical comments are essential to a
balanced view.

Comments are most useful if they indicate the specific paragraph to which they relate, contain a
clear rationale and, where applicable, provide a suggestion for an alternative. Feel free to provide
comments only for those questions, or issues that are relevant to you.

Submissions should be sent to:

Chief Executive

External Reporting Board

PO Box 11250

Manners St Central

Wellington 6142

New Zealand

Email: submissions@xrb.govt.nz

(please refer to 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards in the subject line)

We would appreciate receiving a copy of your submission in electronic form (preferably Microsoft
Word format) as that helps us to efficiently collate and analyse comments.

Please note in your submission on whose behalf the submission is being made (for example, own
behalf, a group of people, or an entity).

The closing date for submissions is 28 September 2018.

Publication of Submissions, the Official Information Act and the Privacy Act

We intend publishing all submissions on the XRB website (xrb.govt.nz), unless the submission may be
defamatory. If you have any objection to publication of your submission, we will not publish it on
the internet. However, it will remain subject to the Official Information Act 1982 and, therefore, it
may be released in part or in full. The Privacy Act 1993 also applies.

If you have an objection to the release of any information contained in your submission, we would
appreciate you identifying the parts of your submission to be withheld, and the grounds under the
Official Information Act 1982 for doing so (e.g. that it would be likely to unfairly prejudice the
commercial position of the person providing the information).

1 The NZASB is a sub-Board of the External Reporting Board (XRB Board), and is responsible for setting accounting
standards.
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List of abbreviations

The following abbreviations are used in this Invitation to Comment.

ED Exposure Draft

IAS’ International Accounting Standard

IASB International Accounting Standards Board

IFRS® Standards International Financial Reporting Standard

IPSASB International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

IPSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standard

NZ IFRS New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards

NZASB New Zealand Accounting Standards Board, a sub-Board of the
External Reporting Board

PBE Public benefit entity

PBE IAS Public Benefit Entity International Accounting Standard

PBE IFRS Public Benefit Entity International Financial Reporting Standard

PBE IPSAS Public Benefit Entity International Public Sector Accounting
Standard
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Questions for respondents

1 Do you agree with the proposed amendments to PBE Standards in Page 11
Part C of ED 2018-37? If you disagree, please provide reasons. Table 1 and
Part C proposes to amend the following standards. Table 2

PBE IPSAS 2 Cash Flow Statements

PBE IPSAS 4 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates and
PBE FRS 47 First-time Adoption of PBE Standards by Entities Other Than
Those Previously Applying NZ IFRS

PBE IPSAS 5 Borrowing Costs
PBE IPSAS 10 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
PBE IPSAS 16 Investment Property

PBE IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General
Government Sector

PBE IPSAS 34 Separate Financial Statements

PBE IPSAS 36 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
PBE IPSAS 37 Joint Arrangements

PBE IPSAS 39 Employee Benefits

PBE IFRS 3 Business Combinations

2 Do you agree that paragraph 76 of PBE IPSAS 16 should be retained?

If you disagree, please provide reasons. Page 11

3 Do you agree with the proposed amendments to PBE Standards in
Part D of ED 2018-37 If you disagree, please provide reasons.
Part D proposes to amend the following standards.

Page 12
Table 3

PBE IAS 12 Income Taxes
PBE IPSAS 38 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

4 Do you agree with the proposed amendments to PBE Standards in
Part E of ED 2018-3? If you disagree, please provide reasons.
Part E proposes to amend the following standards.

Page 13
Table 4

PBE IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
PBE IAS 34 Interim Financial Statements

PBE FRS 46 First-time Adoption of PBE Standards by Entities Previously
Applying NZ IFRS

5 Do you agree with the proposed effective date of 1 January 2019?

If you disagree, please provide reasons. Page 13

6 Do you have any other comments on ED 2018-3? Page 13
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Introduction

NZASB Exposure Draft 2018-3 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards (subsequently
referred to as ED 2018-3 or the ED) contains proposals to amend PBE Standards.

The NZASB regularly considers the improvements and narrow scope amendments made by
the IASB and IPSASB to their standards and forms a view on whether those amendments
should be incorporated in PBE Standards. In cases where amendments made by the IASB will
subsequently be considered by the IPSASB, the NZASB generally waits until the IPSASB has
completed its consideration of those amendments.

In this ED the NZASB is taking the opportunity to seek feedback on the IPSASB’s proposals
concurrently with the IPSASB. This would allow the NZASB to finalise amendments equivalent
to those made by the IPSASB soon after the IPSASB issues an amending standard.

The NZASB also periodically considers other non-urgent matters for which amendments to
standards are required.

The purpose of this Invitation to Comment is to seek comments on the proposed amendments
set out in the ED.

The ED also identifies some editorial corrections. We are not specifically seeking comments on
the editorial corrections, but you may comment on them if you wish.

Submissions on ED 2018-3 are due by 28 September 2018. Information on how to make
submissions is provided on page 4 of this Invitation to Comment.

After the consultation period ends, we will consider the submissions received, and subject to
the comments in those submissions, and the finalisation of the IPSASB’s amendments, we
expect to finalise these amendments soon afterwards.
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Overview of ED 2018-3

The proposed amendments to PBE Standards have been grouped as follows:
(a) amendments arising from Improvements to IPSAS, 2018,

(b)  amendments arising from IASB amendments;

(c)  other New Zealand amendments; and

(d)  editorial corrections.

The IPSASB periodically issues improvements to IPSAS Standards, the standards on which
many PBE Standards are based. The IPSASB’s improvements include amendments based on
the IASB's annual improvements and narrow scope amendments projects, and other
amendments identified by the IPSASB.

In accordance with the NZASB's Policy Approach to Developing the Suite of PBE Standards the
NZASB generally proposes to incorporate the IPSASB’s improvements in PBE Standards. The
NZASB seeks feedback on such amendments through its normal due process.

In April 2018, the IPSASB issued Exposure Draft 65 Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 (ED 65) for
comment.

The NZASB has considered the proposals in ED 65 and, in nearly all cases, is proposing
equivalent amendments to PBE Standards. Tables 1 and 2 below explain how the proposals in
ED 65 have been incorporated in this ED. There are two tables because ED 65 has two parts:
Part | — General Improvements to IPSAS and Part Il — IFRS Convergence Amendments. The
equivalent proposed amendments to PBE Standards are in Part C of ED 2018-3.

Unless otherwise indicated, the proposals in Tables 1 and 2 of ED 65 are incorporated in
ED 2018-3.

Table 1: Amendments arising from IPSASB ED 65 Part 1 — General improvements to IPSAS

PBE IPSAS 22 Disclosure of
Financial Information about
the General Government

PBE Standard Nature of the amendments

PBE IPSAS 10 Financial The term “primary financial statements” (which is not defined in IPSAS) is
Reporting in Hyperinflationary | being replaced with the term “financial statements” (which is a defined
Economies term) for consistency within standards.

Sector
PBE IPSAS 16 Investment ED 65 proposes to delete paragraph 76 of IPSAS 16 on the grounds that it is
Property no longer required.

Paragraph 76 requires that when an entity completes the construction or
development of a self-constructed investment property that will be carried
at fair value, any difference between the fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrying amount shall be recognised in surplus or
deficit.
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PBE Standard

Nature of the amendments

As a result of the amendments made by Improvements to IPSASs (January
2010), investment property under construction is now within the scope of
IPSAS 16.2 The IPSASB is suggesting that, as investment property under
construction is now within the scope of IPSAS 16, there is no need to
explain how to deal with such differences in carrying amounts.

The NZASB’s view is that there may still be circumstances in which this
guidance is required (although the guidance might be more appropriately
located elsewhere in the standard). The NZASB is commenting on this
matter to the IPSASB.

This ED 65 amendment is NOT included in ED 2018-3.
The NZASB is seeking confirmation from New Zealand constituents that
paragraph 76 of PBE IPSAS 16 should not be deleted.

PBE IPSAS 31 Intangible Assets

Paragraph 109 of IPSAS 31 requires an entity to test an intangible asset for
impairment when reassessing its useful life. When IPSAS 31 was issued,
such a test was required only for intangible assets measured under the cost
model. Following the issue of Impairment of Revalued Assets (Amendments
to IPSASs 21 and 26) in July 2016, this test is required for all intangible
assets. The IPSASB is therefore amending paragraph 109 to reflect the
revised requirements.

This ED 65 amendment is NOT included in ED 2018-3.
This matter was addressed when Impairment of Revalued Assets
(Amendments to PBE IPSASs 21 and 26) was issued in April 2017.

PBE IPSAS 34 Separate
Financial Statements

ED 65 proposes to address three matters in IPSAS 34.

Issue 1: The IPSASB is proposing to address incorrect references (in
paragraphs 14 and 30 of IPSAS 34) to the consolidation of certain balances
of a controlled investment entity in separate financial statements. These
paragraphs need to be corrected as a controlling entity does not
consolidate items in its separate financial statements.

Issue 2: The IPSASB is proposing to correct cross-references to
paragraph 58 of IPSAS 35 (the references should be to paragraph 56 of
IPSAS 35).

Issue 3: The IPSASB is proposing to require disclosure of the accounting
policy choice for measuring the investment in the investment entity in the
separate financial statements.

The NZASB is proposing to incorporate the proposed amendments to

IPSAS 34 in PBE IPSAS 34 to maintain alignment between the standards, but
had already addressed Issue 1 (in a manner broadly consistent with the
IPSASB’s proposals) when PBE IPSAS 34 was first issued. There are
therefore fewer changes proposed to PBE IPSAS 34 than to IPSAS 34.

2 These amendments were incorporated in PBE IPSAS 16 when it was first issued.
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Table 2: Amendments arising from IPSAS ED 65 Part 2 — IFRS convergence amendments

PBE Standard

Nature of the amendments

Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle (issued December 2013)

PBE IPSAS 16 Investment
Property

ED 65 is proposing to update some headings in IPSAS 16 Investment
Property.

The ED 65 amendments are NOT included in ED 2018-3.
The equivalent headings in PBE IPSAS 16 have already been amended by
2015 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards (July 2015).

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7) (issued January 2016)

PBE IPSAS 2 Cash Flow
Statements

ED 65 is proposing to add disclosures to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities.

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40) (issued December 2016)

PBE IPSAS 16 Investment
Property

ED 65 is proposing to amend the requirements relating to transfers of
investment property to reflect the principle that a change in use would
involve:
(a) an assessment of whether a property meets, or has ceased to
meet, the definition of an investment property; and

(b)

The list of circumstances in which a transfer occurs is re-characterised as a
non-exhaustive list of examples to be consistent with this principle.

supporting evidence that a change in use has occurred.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (issued December 2016)

PBE IPSAS 4 The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Currency
Exchange Rates

ED 65 proposes to incorporate the requirements of IFRIC 22 in IPSAS 4.

IFRIC 22 clarifies how to account for a transaction when an entity
recognises a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration before the entity recognises
the related asset, expense or income.

PBE FRS 47 First-time
Adoption of PBE Standards by
Entities Other Than Those
Previously Applying NZ IFRS

As a consequence of incorporating IFRIC 22 in IPSAS 4, ED 65 proposes to
amend IPSAS 33 First-time Adoption of Accrual Basis International Public
Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs).

As a consequence of incorporating IFRIC 22 in PBE IPSAS 4, ED 2018-3
proposes to amend PBE FRS 47.

Annual Improvements to IFRS®

Standards 2015-2017 Cycle (issued December 2017)

PBE IPSAS 37 Joint
Arrangements

The amendments clarify the accounting for a previously held interest in a
joint operation.

PBE IFRS 3 Business
Combinations

ED 65 proposes to amend IPSAS 40 Public Sector Combinations to clarify the
accounting for a previously held interest in a joint operation.

ED 2018-3 proposes to amend PBE IFRS 3.

PBE IPSAS 5 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity includes borrowings made
specifically to obtain a qualifying asset in general borrowings when that
qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

10
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PBE Standard Nature of the amendments

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19) (issued February 2018)

PBE IPSAS 39 Employee The amendments require an entity to use the updated assumptions from
Benefits the remeasurement associated with a change to a plan (an amendment,

curtailment or settlement) to determine current service cost and net
interest for the remainder of the reporting period after the change to the
plan.

IPSAS 39 and PBE IPSAS 39 do not currently specify how to determine these
expenses for the period after the change to the plan.

15.

16.

Although ED 65 incorporates many of the recent amendments to IFRS Standards, it does not
incorporate Long-Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments to IAS 28)
(issued October 2017) or Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to
IFRS 9) (issued October 2017). The IPSASB plans to issue a separate ED to address these
amendments once it has issued a new standard based on IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The
NZASB will then look to incorporate equivalent amendments in PBE Standards.

Nor does ED 65 include an amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
that was set out in Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle (issued
December 2016). This amendment clarified that an entity applying IFRS Standards is able to
choose between the equity method or fair value for each investment in an associate or joint
venture. This clarification is not relevant for IPSAS Standards or PBE Standards because

IPSAS 36, and PBE IPSAS 36, require fair value measurement for such investments.

Questions for respondents

1.

Do you agree with the proposed amendments to PBE Standards in Part C of ED 2018-3?
If you disagree, please provide reasons.

Do you agree that paragraph 76 of PBE IPSAS 16 should be retained?
If you disagree, please provide reasons.

11
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Other proposed amendments to PBE Standards arising from recent IASB improvements and

narrow scope amendment projects are set out in Table 3 below and in Part D of the ED. These
amendments are relevant for PBE Standards, but not for IPSAS Standards.

Table 3: Amendments arising from IASB amendments (where no equivalent IPSAS)

PBE Standard

Nature of the amendments

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle (issued December 2016)

PBE IPSAS 38 Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities

The amendments clarify the scope of PBE IPSAS 38 with respect to interests
in entities within the scope of PBE IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations.

Specifically, the amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in
PBE IPSAS 38 (other than those in paragraphs B10—B16) apply to all
interests in other entities regardless of whether or not they are classified as
held-for-sale, as held for distribution to owners or as discontinued
operations.

Annual Improvements to IFRS®

Standards 2015-2017 Cycle (issued December 2017)

PBE IAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify the income tax consequences of payments on

financial instruments classified as equity.

Question for respondents

3.

Do you agree with the proposed amendments to PBE Standards in Part D of ED 2018-3?

If you disagree, please provide reasons.
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18. The ED also proposes amendments to domestic PBE Standards. These are set out in Table 4
below and in Part E of the ED.

Table 4: Other New Zealand amendments

PBE Standard

Nature of the amendments

PBE IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Amends paragraph 31 so that it is more relevant to the PBE context.

PBE IAS 34 Interim Financial
Statements

Amends paragraph 33 to remove an incorrect quote and replace it with a
description of the recognition criteria in the PBE Conceptual Framework.

PBE FRS 46 First-time
Adoption of PBE Standards by
Entities Previously Applying
NZ IFRS

Removes references to suites of standards that have been withdrawn (for
example, NZ IFRS PBE and NZ IFRS Diff Rep).

Question for respondents

4, Do you agree with the proposed amendments to PBE Standards in Part E of ED 2018-3?
If you disagree, please provide reasons.

16. The proposed amendments also include editorial corrections. These are set out in Part F of ED

2018-3.

17. A number of the amendments in the ED are equivalent to amendments in IPSASB
ED 65 Improvements to IPSAS, 2018. The NZASB expects the IPSASB to finalise an amending
standard later this year with an effective date of 1 January 2019.

18. The NZASB will continue to monitor the IPSASB’s project. Subject to consideration of the
comments received on this ED, and the finalisation of the IPSASB’s amending standard, the
NZASB also intends to finalise its amending standard later this year with an effective date of

1January 2019.

Questions for respondents

5. Do you agree with the proposed effective date of 1 January 2019?
If you disagree, please explain why.

6. Do you have any other comments on ED 2018-3?
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NZ ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS
BOARD

EXTERNAL REPORTING BOARD

ai Arahi Piirong

EXPOSURE DRAFT

2018 OMNIBUS AMENDMENTS TO PBE STANDARDS

This [draft] Standard was issued on [date] by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board of the External
Reporting Board pursuant to section 12(a) of the Financial Reporting Act 2013.

This [draft] Standard is a disallowable instrument for the purposes of the Legislation Act 2012, and pursuant to
section 27(1) of the Financial Reporting Act 2013 takes effect on [date].

Reporting entities that are subject to this [draft] Standard are required to apply it in accordance with the effective
date, which is set out in Part G.

In finalising this [draft] Standard, the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board has carried out appropriate
consultation in accordance with section 22(1) of the Financial Reporting Act 2013.

This [draft] Standard has been issued to amend the relevant Tier 1 and Tier 2 PBE Standards as a result of:

(@  amendments arising from Improvements to IPSAS, 2018;

(o)  amendments arising from IASB® amendments;

(c)  other New Zealand amendments; and

(d) editorial corrections.
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mechanical or otherwise either currently known or yet to be invented.

4. Users are not permitted to modify or make alterations, additions or amendments to or create any derivative
works, save as otherwise expressly permitted in this notice.
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Part A: Introduction
This [draft] Standard includes amendments for the following:

(@  Amendments arising from Improvements to IPSAS, 2018;
(i) PBE IPSAS 2 Cash Flow Statements

(ii)  PBE IPSAS 4 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates (and PBE FRS 47
First-time Adoption of PBE Standards by Entities Other Than Those Previously Applying
NZ IFRS)

(iii)  PBE IPSAS 5 Borrowing Costs;
(iv)  PBE IPSAS 10 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies;
(v)  PBE IPSAS 16 Investment Property;
(vi) PBE IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General Government Sector;
(vii) PBE IPSAS 34 Separate Financial Statements;
(viii) PBE IPSAS 36 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures;
(ix) PBE IPSAS 37 Joint Arrangements;
(X)  PBE IPSAS 39 Employee Benefits; and
(xi)  PBE IFRS 3 Business Combinations.
(o)  Amendments arising from IASB® amendments;
0] PBE IAS 12 Income Taxes;
(i)  PBE IPSAS 38 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

(c)  Other New Zealand amendments;
0] PBE IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations;
(ii)  PBE IAS 34 Interim Financial Statements;
(iii)  PBE FRS 46 First-time Adoption of PBE Standards by Entities Previously Applying NZ IFRS; and

(d)  Editorial corrections.
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Part B: Scope

This Standard applies to Tier 1 and Tier 2 public benefit entities.

Part C: Amendments arising from Improvements to IPSAS, 2018

PBE IPSAS 2 Cash Flow Statements

Paragraphs 55A—55E and the related heading are added. Paragraph 63.3 is also added.
New text is underlined.

Changes in Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

*55A.

An entity shall provide disclosures that enable users of the financial statements to evaluate changes

*55B.

in liabilities arising from financing activities, including changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash changes.

To the extent necessary to satisfy the requirement in paragraph 55A, an entity shall disclose the following

*55C.

changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

(a) Changes from financing cash flows;

(b) Changes arising from obtaining or losing control of controlled entities or other operations;

(c) The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;

(d) Changes in fair values; and

(e) Other changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows

*55D.

will be, classified in the cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities. In addition, the
disclosure requirement in paragraph 55A also applies to changes in financial assets (for example, assets
that hedge liabilities arising from financing activities) if cash flows from those financial assets were, or
future cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

One way to fulfil the disclosure requirement in paragraph 55A is by providing a reconciliation between the

*b5E.

opening and closing balances in the statement of financial position for liabilities arising from financing
activities, including the changes identified in paragraph 55B. Where an entity discloses such a
reconciliation, it shall provide sufficient information to enable users of the financial statements to link
items included in the reconciliation to the statement of financial position and the cash flow statement.

If an entity provides the disclosure required by paragraph 55A in combination with disclosures of changes

in other assets and liabilities, it shall disclose the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
separately from changes in those other assets and liabilities.

Effective Date

63.3

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], added paragraphs 55A-55E. An

entity shall apply those amendments for annual financial statements covering periods beginning on

or after [Date]. Earlier application is permitted. When the entity first applies those amendments, it

is not required to provide comparative information for preceding periods.
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Paragraph BC3 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC3. Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7), issued by the IASB in January 2016, amended IAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows to require entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financial assets. The IPSASB subsequently amended IPSAS 2
Cash Flow Statements in Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 and the NZASB amended PBE IPSAS 2 in 2018
Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards.

[llustrative Examples have been added. New text is underlined.

Illustrative Examples
These examples accompany, but are not part of, PBE IPSAS 2.

A.  Public Sector Entity
Cash Flow Statement (For an Entity Other Than a Financial Institution)
Direct Method Cash Flow Statement (paragraph 27(a))

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

(d) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

20X1 Cash flows Non-cash changes 20X2
Acquisition New leases
Long-term borrowings X X X X X
Lease liabilities X X X X X
Long-term debt X X X X X
Indirect Method Cash Flow Statement (paragraph 27(b))
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for Year Ended June 30, 20X2
(in thousands of currency units)
Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
(c) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities
20X1 Cash flows Non-cash changes 20X2
Acquisition New leases
Long-term borrowings X X X X X
Lease liabilities X X X X X
Long-term debt X X X X X
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Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

1 This example illustrates one possible way of providing the disclosures required by paragraphs 55A-55E.

2 The example shows only current period amounts. Corresponding amounts for the preceding period are
required to be presented in accordance with PBE IPSAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.®

20X1 Cash flows Non-cash changes 20X2
Acquisition Foreign Fair value

Exchange changes

Movement
Long term borrowings X X - - - X
Short-term borrowings X X - X - X
Lease liabilities X X X — — X
Assets held to hedge X X X X
long-term borrowings
Total liabilities from X X X X X X

financing activities

B. Not-for-Profit Entity
Cash Flow Statement (For an Entity Other Than a Financial Institution)

Direct Method Cash Flow Statement (paragraph 27(a))

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

(d) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

20X1 Cash flows Non-cash changes
Acquisition New leases 20X2
Long-term borrowings X X X X X
Lease liabilities X X X X X
Long-term debt X X X X X

3 PBE FRS 48 Service Performance Reporting, which is effective for annual financial reports covering periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021, changes the title of PBE IPSAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to Presentation of Financial Reports. This
reference to the title of PBE IPSAS 1 is added to the list of Generic amendments to PBE Standards in Appendix A of PBE FRS 48.
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Indirect Method Cash Flow Statement (paragraph 27(b))

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for Year Ended June 30, 20X2

(in thousands of currency units)

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

(c) _Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

Agenda Item 5.2

20X1 Cash flows Non-cash changes 20X2
Acquisition New leases

Long-term borrowings X X X X X

Lease liabilities X X X X X

Long-term debt X X X X X
Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities
1 This example illustrates one possible way of providing the disclosures required by paragraphs 55A-55E.
2 The example shows only current period amounts. Corresponding amounts for the preceding period are

required to be presented in accordance with PBE IPSAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.*

20X1 Cash flows Non-cash changes 20X2
Acquisition Foreign Fair value

Exchange changes

Movement
Long term borrowings X X - - - X
Short-term borrowings X X - X - X
Lease liabilities X X X - - X
Assets held to hedge X X X X
long-term borrowings
Total liabilities from X X X X X X

financing activities

4 This reference to the title of PBE IPSAS 1 is added to the list of Generic amendments to PBE Standards in Appendix A of PBE FRS 48.
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PBE IPSAS 4 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange
Rates

‘Paragraphs 70A, 70B and 72.4 are added. New text is underlined.

Transitional Provisions

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
(Amendments made by 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards)

70A. On initial application, an entity shall apply the requirements of Appendix A either:

(@)  Retrospectively applying PBE IPSAS 3 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors; or

(b)  Prospectively to all assets, expenses and revenue in the scope of Appendix A initially recognised
on or after:

(0] The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies Appendix A; or

(ii) _ The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the
financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies Appendix A.

70B. An entity that applies paragraph 70A(b), shall, on initial application, apply Appendix A to assets, expenses
and revenue initially recognised on or after the beginning of the reporting period in paragraph 70A(b)(i) or
(ii) for which the entity has recognised non-monetary assets or non-monetary liabilities arising from
advance consideration before that date.

Effective Date

72.4 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], added paragraphs 70A and 70B and
Appendix A. An entity shall apply these amendments for annual financial statements covering
periods beginning on or after [Date]. Earlier application is permitted. If an entity applies these
amendments for a period beginning before [Date] it shall disclose that fact.

‘Appendix Ais added. ‘

Appendix A

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
This Appendix is an integral part of PBE IPSAS 4.
Introduction

Al. Paragraph 24 of PBE IPSAS 4 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, requires an entity to
record a foreign currency transaction, on initial recognition in its functional currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency
(the exchange rate) at the date of the transaction. Paragraph 25 of PBE IPSAS 4 states that the date of the
transaction is the date on which the transaction first qualifies for recognition in accordance with
PBE Standards.

A2.  When an entity pays or receives consideration in advance in a foreign currency, it generally recognises a
non-monetary asset or a non-monetary liability before the recognition of the related asset, expense or
revenue. The related asset, expense or revenue (or part of it) is the amount recognised applying relevant
Standards, which results in the derecognition of the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration.
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A3. This Appendix clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or revenue when an entity has received or paid advance
consideration in a foreign currency.

Scope

A4. This Appendix applies to a foreign currency transaction (or part of it) when an entity recognises a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration
before the entity recognises the related asset, expense or revenue (or part of it).

A5.  This Appendix does not apply when an entity measures the related asset, expense or revenue on initial
recognition:

(@ At fair value; or

(b) At the fair value of the consideration paid or received at a date other than the date of initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from advance consideration
(for example, the measurement of goodwill applying PBE IFRS 3 Business Combinations).

A6.  An entity is not required to apply this Appendix to:
(@  Income taxes; or

(b)  Insurance contracts (including reinsurance contracts) that it issues or reinsurance contracts that it
issues or reinsurance contracts that it holds.

Application of PBE IPSAS 4 to Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

AT7.  This Appendix addresses how to determine the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or revenue (or part of it) on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration in a foreign currency.

A8.  Applying paragraphs 24-25 of PBE IPSAS 4, the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or revenue (or part of it) is the
date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the payment or receipt of advance consideration.

A9. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction
for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Paragraph BC2 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC2. In December 2016 the IASB issued IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration.
The IPSASB subsequently issued Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 which incorporated the requirements of
IFRIC 22 in IPSAS 4 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates. The NZASB amended
PBE IPSAS 4 in 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards.
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[llustrative Examples IE1-IE19 and the related headings are added.

Illustrative Examples

These Illustrative Examples accompany, but are not part of, PBE IPSAS 4

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

In these lllustrative Examples, foreign currency amounts are ‘Foreign Currency’ (FC) and functional currency
amounts are ‘Local Currency’ (LC).

IE1.

The objective of these examples is to illustrate how an entity determines the date of the transaction when
it recognises a non-monetary asset or a non-monetary liability arising from advance consideration in a
foreign currency before it recognises the related asset, expense or revenue (or part of it) applying relevant
PBE Standards.

Example 1-A single advance payment for the purchase of a single item of property, plant and equipment

IE2.

IE3.

IE4.

On March 1, 20X1, Entity A entered into a contract with a supplier to purchase a machine for use in its
operations. Under the terms of the contract, Entity A pays the supplier a fixed purchase price of FC1,000
on April 1, 20X1. On April 15, 20X1, Entity A takes delivery of the machine.

Entity A initially recognises a non-monetary asset translating FC1,000 into its functional currency at the
spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency on April 1, 20X1. Applying
paragraph 27(b) of PBE IPSAS 4 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, Entity A does not
update the translated amount of that non-monetary asset.

On April 15, 20X1, Entity A takes delivery of the machine. Entity A derecognises the non-monetary asset
and recognises the machine as property, plant and equipment applying PBE IPSAS 17 Property, Plant and
Equipment. On initial recognition of the machine, Entity A recognises the cost of the machine using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction, which is April 1, 20X1 (the date of initial recognition of the
non-monetary asset).

Example 2—Multiple receipts for revenue recognised at a single point in time

IES.

IE6.

IE7.

IES.

IEQ.

IE10.

On June 1, 20X2, Entity B entered into a contract with a customer to deliver goods on September 1, 20X2.
The total fixed contract price is an amount of FC100, of which FC40 is due and received on August 1,
20X2 and the balance receivable on September 30, 20X2.

Entity B initially recognises a non-monetary contract liability translating FC40 into its functional currency
at the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency on August 1, 20X2.
Applying paragraph 27(b) of PBE IPSAS 4, Entity B does not update the translated amount of that non-
monetary liability.

Applying paragraph 28 of PBE IPSAS 9 Revenue from Exchange Transactions, Entity B recognises
revenue on September 1, 20X2, the date on which it transfers the goods to the customer.

Entity B determines that the date of the transaction for the revenue relating to the advance consideration
of FC40 is August 1, 20X2. Applying paragraph 25 of PBE IPSAS 4, Entity B determines that the date of
the transaction for the remainder of the revenue is September 1, 20X2.

On September 1, 20X2, Entity B:

(@)  Derecognises the contract liability for FC40 and recognises revenue using the exchange rate on
August 1, 20X2; and

(b)  Recognises revenue of FC60 and a corresponding receivable using the exchange rate on that date
(September 1, 20X2).

The receivable of FC60 recognised on September 1, 20X2 is a monetary item. Entity B updates the
translated amount of the receivable until the receivable is settled.

Example 3—Multiple payments for purchases of services over a period of time

IE11.

On May 1, 20X3, Entity C entered into a contract with a supplier for services. The supplier will provide
the services to Entity C evenly over the period from July 1, 20X3 to December 31, 20X3. The contract
requires Entity C to pay the supplier FC200 on June 15, 20X3 and FC400 on December 31, 20X3. Entity C
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IE13.

IE14.

IE15.
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has determined that, for this contract, the payment of FC200 on June 15, 20X3 relates to the services to be
received in the period July 1-August 31, 20X3, and the payment of FC400 on December 31, 20X3 relates
to the services to be received in the period September 1-December 31, 20X3.

Entity C recognises a non-monetary asset translating FC200 into its functional currency at the spot
exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency on June 15, 20X3.

In the period July 1-August 31, 20X3, Entity C derecognises a hon-monetary asset and recognises an
expense of FC200 in surplus or deficit as it receives the services from the supplier. Entity C determines
that the date of the transaction for the expense related to the advance consideration of FC200 is June 15,
20X3 (the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary asset).

In the period September 1-December 31, 20X3, Entity C initially recognises the expense in surplus or
deficit as it receives the services from the supplier. In principle, the dates of the transaction are each day
in the period September 1-December 31, 20X3. However, if exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly,
Entity C may use a rate that approximates the actual rates as permitted by paragraph 25 of PBE IPSAS 4.
If that is the case, Entity C, may for example, translate each month’s expense of FC100 (FC400 + 4) into
its functional currency using the average exchange rate for each month for the period September 1—
December 31, 20X3.

As Entity C recognises the expense in the period September 1-December 31, 20X3, it recognises a
corresponding liability in respect of its obligation to pay the supplier. The liability is a monetary item.
Entity C updates the translated amount of the liability until the liability is settled.

Example 4—Multiple receipts for revenue recognised at multiple points in time

IE16.

IE17.

IE18.

IE19.

On January 1, 20X4, Entity D enters into a contract to sell two products to a customer. Entity D transfers
one product on March 1, 20X4 and the second on June 1, 20X4. As required by the contract, the customer
pays a fixed purchase price of FC1,000, of which FC200 is due and received in advance on January 31,
20X4 and the balance is due and received on June 1, 20X4.

The following facts are relevant:
(@  The price of the first product is FC450 and the price of the second product is FC550.

(b)  Entity D has determined that, for this contract, the consideration of FC200 received on January 31,
20X4 relates to the first product transferred on March 1, 20X4. On transfer of that product to the
customer, Entity D has an unconditional right to FC250 of the remaining consideration.

The spot exchange rates are:

Date Spot exchange rate FC:LC
31 January 20X4 1:15
1 March 20X4 1:1.7
1 June 20X4 1:1.9

The following journal entries illustrate how Entity D accounts for the foreign currency aspects of the
contract:

(@)  Entity D receives the advance payment of FC200 on January 31, 20X4, which it translates into its
functional currency using the exchange rate at January 31, 20X4.
DR Cash (FC200) LC300
CR Contract Liability (FC200) LC300

(b)  Applying paragraph 27(b) of PBE IPSAS 4, Entity D does not update the translated amount of the
non-monetary contract liability.

(c)  Entity D transfers the first product with a price of FC450 on March 1, 20X4. Entity D derecognises
the contract liability and recognises revenue of LC300. Entity D recognises the remaining revenue
of FC250 relating to the first product and a corresponding receivable, both of which it translates at
the exchange rate at the date that it initially recognises the remaining revenue of FC250
i.e., March 1, 20X4.
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DR Contract liability (FC200) LC300
DR Receivable (FC250) LC425
CR Revenue (FC450) LC725

(d)  The receivable of FC250 is a monetary item. Entity D updates the translated amount of the
receivable until the receivable is settled (June 1, 20X4). At June 1, 20X4, the receivable of FC250
is equivalent to LC475. As required by paragraph 32 of PBE IPSAS 4, Entity D recognises an
exchange gain of LC50 in surplus or deficit.

DR Receivable LC50

CR Revenue LC50

(e)  Entity D transfers the second product with a price of FC550 on June 1, 20X4. Entity D recognizes
revenue of FC550 using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction, which is the date that
Entity D first recognises this part of the transaction in its financial statements, i.e. June 1, 20X4.

) Entity D receives the remaining consideration of FC800 on June 1, 20X4. FC250 of the
consideration received settles the receivable of FC250 arising on the transfer of the first product.
Entity D translates the cash at the exchange rate at June 1, 20X4.

DR Cash (FC800) LC1,520
CR Receivable (FC250) LC475
CR Revenue (FC550) LC1,045

Note for the Board

As a consequence of amending IPSAS 4, ED 65 also amends IPSAS 33 First-time Adoption of Accrual
Basis International Public Sector Accounting Standards. ED 65 adds an exemption in relation to the
new requirements in IPSAS 4. We have not shown this amendment as there is no PBE Standard
based on IPSAS 33. Instead, ED 2018-3 also amends PBE FRS 47 (see below). We have located the
additional exemption immediately following the amendments to PBE IPSAS 4.
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PBE FRS 47 First-time Adoption of PBE Standards by Entities Other
Than Those Previously Applying NZ IFRS

‘ Paragraph 42.7 is added. New text is underlined.

Effective Date

42.7 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], amended paragraph C1 and added
paragraph C32. An entity shall apply those amendments when it applies Appendix A of
PBE IPSAS 4.

Paragraph C1(r) is added. Paragraph C32 and the related heading are also added.
New text is underlined and deleted text is struck through.

Appendix C

Exemptions from other PBE Standards
This Appendix is an integral part of PBE FRS 47.

Cl. Anentity may elect to use one or more of the following exemptions:

(p)  Intangible assets (paragraph C30); and
(q)  Joint arrangements (paragraph C31):; and

(n Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration (paragraph C32).

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

C32. A first-time adopter need not apply Appendix A of PBE IPSAS 4 to assets, expenses and revenue in the
scope of Appendix A initially recognised before the date of transition to PBE Standards.

‘ Paragraph BC10 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC10. In December 2016 the IASB issued IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
and amended IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards. The IPSASB
subseguently issued Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 which incorporated the requirements of IFRIC 22 in
IPSAS 4 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates and amended IPSAS 33 First-time
Adoption of Accrual Basis International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs). The NZASB
amended PBE IPSAS 4 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates and PBE FRS 47 in
2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards.
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PBE IPSAS 5 Borrowing Costs

Paragraph 25 is amended and paragraphs 41A and 43.4 are added. New text is underlined and
deleted text is struck through.

Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalisation

25.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation shall be determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the outlays on that asset. The capitalisation rate shall be the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the all borrowings of the entity that are outstanding during the
period.—other-than-berrowings-However, an entity shall exclude from this calculation borrowing
costs applicable to borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset_until
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.
The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during a period shall not exceed the amount of borrowing
costs incurred during that period.

Transitional Provisions

41A.

2018 Omnibus Amendments PBE Standards, issued in [Date], amended paragraph 25. An entity shall apply

those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which the entity first applies those amendments.

Effective Date

43.4

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], amended paragraph 25 and added

paragraph 41A. An entity shall apply those amendments for annual financial statements covering
periods beginning on or after [Date]. Earlier application is permitted. If an entity applies those
amendments for a period beginning before [Date] it shall disclose that fact.

Paragraph BC2 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC2.

In December 2017 the IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRS® Standards 2015-2017 Cycle which

amended IAS 23 Borrowing Costs. The amendments clarified that that an entity includes borrowings made
specifically to obtain a qualifying asset in general borrowings when that qualifying asset is ready for its
intended use or sale. The IPSASB subsequently issued Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 which incorporated
equivalent amendments in IPSAS 5 Borrowing Costs. The NZASB amended PBE IPSAS 5 in 2018
Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards.
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PBE IPSAS 10 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

Paragraph 9 is amended and paragraph 39.2 is added. New text is underlined and deleted text is
struck through.

The Restatement of Financial Statements

9. In a hyperinflationary economy, financial statements are useful only if they are expressed in terms of the
measuring unit current at the reporting date. As a result, this Standard applies to the primary financial
statements of entities reporting in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy. Presentation of the
information required by this Standard as a supplement to unrestated financial statements is not permitted.
Furthermore, separate presentation of the financial statements before restatement is discouraged.

Effective Date

39.2 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date] amended paragraph 9. An entity shall
apply that amendment for annual financial statements covering periods beginning on or after [Date].
Earlier application is permitted.

Paragraph BC2 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC2. In [Month] 2018 the IPSASB issued Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 which amended IPSAS 10 Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies and replaced the term “primary financial statements” (which is
not defined in IPSAS) with the term “financial statements” (which is a defined term). The NZASB amended
PBE IPSAS 10 in 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards.
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PBE IPSAS 16 Investment Property

Paragraphs 66 and 68 are amended and paragraphs 100A—100C and 102.5 are added.
New text is underlined and deleted text is struck through.

Transfers

66.

68.

Fransfers An entity shall transfer a property to or from investment property shall-be-made when,
and only when, there is a change in use;-evidenced-by. A change in use occurs when the property
meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in
use. In isolation, a change in management’s intentions for the use of property does not provide
evidence of a change in use. Examples of evidence of a change in use include:

(@  Commencement of owner-occupation, or_of development with a view to owner-occupation,
for a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property;

(b)  Commencement of development with a view to sale, for a transfer from investment property
to inventories;

(¢) End of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment
property; erand

(d) Commenecement Inception of an operating lease (on a commercial basis) to another party, for
a transfer from inventories to investment property.

(e) [Deleted by IPSASB]

When an entity decides to dispose of an investment property without development, it continues to treat the
property as an investment property until it is derecognised (eliminated from the statement of financial
position) and does not treatreclassify it as inventory. Similarly, if an entity begins to redevelop an existing
investment property for continued future use as investment property, the property remains an investment
property and is not reclassified as owner-occupied property during the redevelopment.

Transitional Provisions

Transfers of Investment Property

100A

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], amended paragraphs 66 and 68. An entity

1008B.

shall apply those amendments to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendments (the date of initial application). At the date of initial
application, an entity shall reassess the classification of property held at that date and, if applicable,
reclassify property applying paragraphs 9-18 to reflect the conditions that exist at that date.

Notwithstanding the requirements in paragraph 100A, an entity is permitted to apply the amendments to

100C.

paragraphs 66 and 68 retrospectively in accordance with PBE IPSAS 3 if, and only if, that is possible
without the use of hindsight.

If, in accordance with paragraph 100A, an entity reclassifies property at the date of initial application, the

entity shall:

(a) Account for the reclassification applying the requirements in paragraphs 70—75. In applying
paragraphs 70-75, an entity shall:

(i) Read any reference to the date of change in use as the date of initial application; and

(ii)  Recognise any amount that, in accordance with paragraphs 70—75, would have been
recognised in surplus or deficit as an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated
surplus or deficit at the date of initial application.

(b) Disclose the amounts reclassified to, or from, investment property in accordance with
paragraph 100A. The entity shall disclose those amounts reclassified as part of the reconciliation of
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the carrying amount of investment property at the beginning and end of the period as required by
paragraphs 87 and 90.

Effective Date

102.5 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], amended paragraphs 66 and 68 and
added paragraphs 100A-100C. An entity shall apply those amendments for annual financial
statements covering periods beginning on or after [Date]. Earlier application is permitted. If an
entity applies this amendment for a period beginning before [Date] it shall disclose that fact.

Paragraph BC9 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC9. In December 2016 the IASB issued Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40). The
IPSASB subsequently issued Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 which incorporated equivalent amendments in
IPSAS 16 Investment Property. The NZASB amended PBE IPSAS 16 in 2018 Omnibus Amendments to
PBE Standards.
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PBE IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General
Government Sector

Paragraph 37 is amended and paragraph 47.4 is added. New text is underlined and deleted text is
struck through.

Disclosures

37.  This Standard requires disclosure of the major classes of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and cash
flows reflected in the financial statements. This Standard does not specify the manner in which the GGS
disclosures shall be made. Governments electing to make GGS disclosures in accordance with this
Standard may make such disclosures by way of (a) note disclosure, (b) separate columns in the primary
financial statements, or (c) otherwise, as considered appropriate in their jurisdiction. However, the manner
of presentation of the GGS disclosures will be no more prominent than the consolidated financial
statements prepared in accordance with PBE Standards.

Effective Date

47.4 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], amended paragraph 37. An entity
shall apply this amendment for annual financial statements covering periods beginning on or after
[Date]. Earlier application is permitted.

‘ Paragraph BC4 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC4. In [Month] 2018 the IPSASB issued Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 which amended IPSAS 22 Disclosure
of Financial Information about the General Government Sector and replaced the term “primary financial
statements” (which is not defined in IPSAS) with the term “financial statements” (which is a defined term).
The NZASB amended PBE IPSAS 22 in 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards
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PBE IPSAS 34 Separate Financial Statements

Paragraphs 22 and 30 are amended and paragraph 32.3 is added. New text is underlined and deleted
text is struck through.

Disclosure

22.

If a controlling entity that is not itself an investment entity is required_to apply the requirements of

m—aeeemlanee—wrtbrparagraph 5658 of PBE IPSAS 35, t&measu#e—the—uwestment&ef—areen#eued

measurlnq its investment in the investment entity in its separate financial statements, and present
the disclosures relating to investment entities required by PBE IPSAS 38.

Note for the Board

The requirement for an entity to disclose its accounting policy choice for measuring its investment in
the investment entity in its separate financial statements would be a new requirement.
Does the Board agree to propose this additional disclosure requirement in PBE IPSAS 34?

Transitional Provisions

30.

At the date of initial application, a controlling entity that is not itself an investment entity but which
is required, in accordance with paragraph 3458 of this-StandardPBE IPSAS 35, to measure its
investment in a controlled investment entity at fair value through surplus or deficit in accordance
with PBE IPSAS 29, shall use the transitional provisions in paragraphs 24-29 in accounting for its
investment in the controlled investment entity in its separate financial statements.

Effective Date

32.3

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], amended paragraphs 22 and 30. An

entity shall apply those amendments for annual financial statements covering periods beginning on
or after [Date]. Earlier application is permitted. If an entity applies these amendments for a period
beginning before [Date] it shall disclose that fact.

Paragraph BC6 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC6.

In [Month] 2018 the IPSASB issued Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 which corrected some of the

requirements in IPSAS 34 Separate Financial Statements in relation to a controlling entity with controlled
investment entities but which is not itself an investment entity. The NZASB had already addressed some
of these issues when it first issued PBE IPSAS 34 (see paragraph BC3 above). In 2018 the NZASB aligned
the requirements in PBE IPSAS 34 with the corrected requirements in IPSAS 34.
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PBE IPSAS 36 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Paragraph 24 is amended and paragraph 51.3 is added. New text is underlined and deleted text is
struck through.

Exemptions from Applying the Equity Method

24,

When an investment in an associate or joint venture is held by, or is held indirectly through, an entity that
is a venture capital organisation, or a mutual fund, unit trust and similar entities including investment-
linked insurance funds, the entity may elect to measure_that investments-in-those-assoeciates—and—joint
ventures at fair value through surplus or deficit in accordance with PBE IPSAS 29._An entity shall make
this election separately for each associate or joint venture, at initial recognition of the associate or joint
venture. An investment entity will, by definition, have made this election_for its investments.

Effective Date

51.3

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], amended paragraph 24. An entity

shall apply that amendment retrospectively in accordance with PBE IPSAS 3 for annual financial
statements covering periods beginning on or after [Date]. Earlier application is permitted. If an
entity applies this amendment for a period beginning before [Date] it shall disclose that fact.

‘ Paragraph BC4 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC4.

In December 2016 the IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle which

amended IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. These amendments clarified that an entity
is able to choose between applying the equity method or measuring the investment at fair value for each
investment in an associate or joint venture. The IPSASB subsequently issued Improvements to IPSAS, 2018
which incorporated equivalent amendments in IPSAS 36 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.
The NZASB amended PBE IPSAS 36 in 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards.
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PBE IPSAS 37 Joint Arrangements

‘ Paragraph 42.3 is added. New text is underlined.

Effective Date

423

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], added paragraph AG33.3A. An entity

shall apply those amendments to transactions in which it obtains joint control on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after [Date]. Earlier application is
permitted. If an entity applies those amendments earlier, it shall disclose that fact.

‘ Paragraph AG33.3A is added. New text is underlined.

Application Guidance
This Appendix is an integral part of PBE IPSAS 37.

Financial Statements of Parties to a Joint Arrangement
(paragraphs 23-28)

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

AG33.3A A party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain joint control

of the joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes an operation as defined in
PBE IFRS 3. In such cases, previously held interests in the joint operation are not remeasured.

‘ Paragraph BC4 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC4.

In December 2017 the IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRS® Standards 2015-2017 Cycle which

amended IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements. These amendments clarified that when an entity obtains control of
a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure previously held interests in that business.
The IPSASB subsequently issued Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 which incorporated equivalent
amendments in IPSAS 37 Joint Arrangements. The NZASB amended PBE IPSAS 37 in 2018 Omnibus
Amendments to PBE Standards.
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PBE IPSAS 39 Employee Benefits

Paragraphs 59, 101, 122, 125, 127, 128 and 159 are amended and paragraphs 103A, 124A, 125A and
177.1 and a new heading before paragraph 124A are added. New text is underlined and deleted text
is struck through.

Post-employment Benefits—Defined Benefit Plans
Recognition and Measurement
59.  Accounting by an entity for a defined benefit plan involves the following steps:

(c)  Determining amounts to be recognised in surplus or deficit:

0] Current service cost (see paragraphs 72—76 and paragraph 124A).

Past Service Cost and Gains and Losses on Settlement

101. Befere When determining past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, an entity shall remeasure
the net defined benefit liability (asset) using the current fair value of plan assets and current
actuarial assumptions (including current market interest rates and other current market prices),
reflecting:

(@) tThe benefits offered under the plan_and the plan assets before the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and

(b) The benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement.

103A. When a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, an entity shall recognise and measure any past
service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, in accordance with paragraphs 101-103 and paragraphs 104—
114. In doing so, and entity shall not consider the effect of the asset ceiling. An entity shall then determine
the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement and shall recognise any
change in that effect in accordance with paragraph 59(d).

Components of Defined Benefit Cost

122. An entity shall recognise the components of defined benefit cost, except to the extent that another
Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset, as follows:

(@)  Service cost (see paragraphs 68—114 and paragraph 1214A) in surplus or deficit;

Current Service Cost

124A. An entity shall determine current service cost using actuarial assumptions determined at the start of
the annual reporting period. However, if an entity remeasures the net defined benefit liability (asset)
in accordance with paragraph 101, it shall determine the current service cost for the remainder of
the annual reporting period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using the actuarial
assumptions used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset) in accordance with
paragraph 101(b).

Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset)
125. An entity shall determine Nnet interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) shal-be-determined

by multiplying the net deflned beneflt I|ab|I|ty (asset) by the dlscount rate specmed in in
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125A. To determine net interest in accordance with paragraph 125, an entity shall use the net defined

127.

128.

benefit liability (asset) and the discount rate determined at the start of the annual reporting period.
However, if an entity remeasures the net defined benefit liability (asset) in accordance with
paragraph 101, the entity shall determine net interest for the remainder of the annual reporting
period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using:

(a) The net defined benefit liability (asset) determined in accordance with paragraph 101(b); and

(b) The discount rate used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset) in accordance with

paragraph 101(b).

In applying paragraph 125A, the entity shall also take into account any changes in the net defined

benefit liability (asset) during the period resulting from contributions or benefit payments.

Interest revenue on plan assets is a component of the return on plan assets, and is determined by
multiplying the fair value of the plan assets by the discount rate specified in paragraph 125A. 85-beth-as
elete.tmmeel An entltv shall determlne the falr value of the plan assets at the start of the reportlng perlod

beﬂeﬁt—paymems However if an entltv remeasures the net deflned beneflt Ilabllltv (asset) in accordance

with paragraph 101, the entity shall determine interest revenue for the remainder of the annual reporting
period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using the plan assets used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability (asset) in accordance with paragraph 101(b). In applying paragraph 127, the entity
shall take into account any changes in the plan assets held during the period resulting from contributions
or benefit payments. The difference between the interest revenue on plan assets and the return on plan
assets is included in the remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset).

Interest on the effect of the asset ceiling is part of the total change in the effect of the asset ceiling, and is
determined by multiplying the effect of the asset ceiling by the discount rate specified in
paragraph_125A85-both-as-determined-at-the-start-of the-reportingperiod: An entity shall determine the
effect of the asset ceiling at the start of the annual reporting period. However, if an entity remeasures the
net defined benefit liability (asset) in accordance with paragraph 101, the entity shall determine interest on
the effect of the asset ceiling for the remainder of the annual reporting period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement taking into account any change in the effect of the asset ceiling determined in
accordance with paragraph 103A. The difference between that-ameunt interest on the effect of the asset
ceiling and the total change in the effect of the asset ceiling is included in the remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liability (asset).

Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

Recognition and Measurement

159.

For other long-term employee benefits, an entity shall recognise the net total of the following
amounts in surplus or deficit, except to the extent that another Standard requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset:

(@)  Service cost (see paragraphs 68-114 and paragraph 124A);

Effective Date
177.1 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], amended paragraphs 59, 101, 122,

125, 127, 128 and 159 and added paragraphs 103A, 124A and 125A. An entity shall apply those
amendments to plan amendments, curtailments or settlements occurring on or after the beginning
of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after [Date]. Earlier application is permitted.
If an entity applies these amendments earlier it shall disclose that fact.
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Paragraph BC4 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC4.

In February 2018 the IASB issued Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to 1AS 19).

These amendments required that an entity use the updated assumptions from the remeasurement associated
with a change to a plan (an amendment, curtailment or settlement) to determine current service cost and
net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after the change to the plan. The IPSASB subsequently
issued Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 which incorporated equivalent amendments in IPSAS 39 Employee
Benefits. The NZASB amended PBE IPSAS 39 in 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards.
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PBE IFRS 3 Business Combinations

‘ Paragraphs 42A and 64.7 are added. New text is underlined.

Additional Guidance for Applying the Acquisition Method to Particular Types of Business
Combinations

A Business Combination Achieved in Stages

42A. When a party to a joint arrangement (as defined in PBE IPSAS 37 Joint Arrangements) obtains control of
an _operation that is a joint operation (as defined in PBE IPSAS 37), and had rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities relating to that joint operation immediately before the acquisition date, the
transaction is a business combination achieved in stages. The acquirer shall therefore apply the
requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring its previously held
interest in the joint operation in the manner described in paragraph 42. In doing so, the acquirer shall
remeasure its entire previously held interest in the joint operation.

Effective Date

64.7 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], added paragraph 42A. An entity shall
apply those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after [Date]. Earlier application is
permitted. If an entity applies those amendments earlier, it shall disclose that fact.

‘ Paragraph BC6 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC6. In December 2017 the IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRS® Standards 2015-2017 Cycle which
amended IFRS 3 Business Combinations. The amendments clarified that when an entity obtains control of
a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in that business. The IPSASB
subseguently issued Improvements to IPSAS, 2018 which incorporated equivalent amendments in
IPSAS 40 Public Sector Combinations. The NZASB incorporated equivalent amendments in PBE IFRS 3,
pending the development of a PBE Standard based on IPSAS 40.
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Part D: Amendments arising from IASB® amendments

PBE IAS 12 Income Taxes

Paragraphs 57A and 98.7 are added. The heading of the example below paragraph 52B is amended
and paragraph 52B is deleted. New text is underlined and deleted text is struck through.

Measurement

52B.

Example Illustrating Paragraphs 52A and 52B57A

Recognition of Current and Deferred Tax

57A An entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends when it recognises a liability to pay a
dividend. The income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions or events
that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity shall recognise the
income tax consequences of dividends in surplus or deficit, other comprehensive revenue and expense or
net assets/equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

Note for the Board

The equivalent paragraph in NZ IAS 12 is shown below for the Board’s information.

57A An entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends as defined in NZ IFRS 9 when it
recognises a liability to pay a dividend. The income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly
to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore,
an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

The term ‘dividends’ is not defined in PBE Standards — ‘distributions to owners’ is defined in
PBE IPSAS 1.7. A number of PBE Standards refer to ‘dividends or similar distributions’.

PBE IAS 12 refers to ‘dividends’ in several places. This term has a specific meaning for tax purposes
and changing terminology in PBE IAS 12 could create uncertainty for preparers.

In drafting the amendment to PBE IAS 12 we have (i) deleted the reference to the definition of a
dividend; and (ii) kept the references to dividends.

Effective Date

98.7 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], added paragraph 57A and deleted
paragraph 52B. An entity shall apply those amendments for annual financial statements covering
periods beginning on or after [Date]. Earlier application is permitted. If an entity applies those
amendments earlier, it shall disclose that fact. When an entity first applies those amendments, it
shall apply them to the income tax consequences of dividends recognised on or after the beginning
of the earliest comparative period.
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Paragraph BC5 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC5. In December 2017 the IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRS® Standards 2015-2017 Cycle which
amended IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendments clarify that the requirements in the former paragraph 52B
(to recognise the income tax consequences of dividends where the transactions or events that generated
distributable profits are recognised) apply to all income tax consequences of dividends by moving the
paragraph away from paragraph 52A that only deals with situations where there are different tax rates for
distributed and undistributed profits. The NZASB subsequently issued 2018 Omnibus Amendments to
PBE Standards which incorporated equivalent amendments in PBE 1AS 12.
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PBE IPSAS 38 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

‘Paragraphs 5A and 61.4 are added. New text is underlined.

Scope

5A. Except as described in paragraph AG16.1, the requirements in this Standard apply to an entity’s interest
listed in paragraph 5 that are classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale
or_discontinued operations in accordance with PBE IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

Effective Date

61.4 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], added paragraph 5A and amended
paragraph AG16.1. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with
PBE IPSAS 3 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors for annual periods
beginning on or after [Date].

In Appendix A, paragraph AG16.1 is amended. Deleted text is struck through and new text is
underlined.

Summarised Financial Information for Controlled Entities, Joint Ventures and Associates
(paragraphs 19 and 36)

*AG16.1 When an entity’s interest in a controlled entity, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest
in a joint venture or an associate) is classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held
for sale in accordance with PBE IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,
the entity is not required to disclose summarised financial information for that controlled entity, joint
venture or associate in accordance with paragraphs AG10-AG16.

‘ Paragraph BC5 and the related heading are added. New text is underlined.

Basis for Conclusions

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC5. In December 2016 the IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle which
amended IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. The amendments clarified the scope of IFRS 12
by specifying which disclosure requirements in the Standard apply to an entity’s interests in other entities
that are classified as held for sale, as held for distribution or as discontinued operations in accordance with
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. The NZASB subsequently issued
2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards which incorporated equivalent amendments in
PBE IPSAS 38.
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Part E: Other New Zealand amendments

PBE IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Paragraph 31 is amended and paragraph 44.7 is added. New text is underlined and deleted text is
struck through.

Presenting Discontinued Operations

31. A component of an entity comprises operations or cash flows that can be clearly distinguished,
operationally and for financial reporting purposes, from the rest of the entity. In other words, a component
of an entity maywilt have been a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units while being held
for use.

Note for the Board

The amendment to paragraph 31 has been made because cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units are largely irrelevant in the PBE context.

Effective Date

44.7 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], amended paragraph 31.

44



Agenda Item 5.2

PBE IAS 34 Interim Financial Statements

Paragraph 33 is amended and paragraph 49.10 is added. New text is underlined and deleted text is
struck through.

33.

An essential characteristic of revenue and expenses is that the related inflows and outflows of assets and
liabilities have already taken place. If those inflows and outflows have taken place, the related revenue and
expenses are recognised; otherwise they are not recognised. Fhe-PBE-Coneeptual-Framework-says-that

—a—way-that-achieves—the—qualitative—characteristicsThe recognition criteria in the PBE Conceptual
Framework are that an item satisfies the definition of an element and can be measured in a way that
achieves the qualitative characteristics and takes account of constraints on information in GPFRs.=fThe}
PBE Conceptual Framework generally? does not allow the recognition of items which do not meet the
definition of assets or liabilities.2

2 Footnote 2 not shown

Effective Date

49.10 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards, issued in [Date], amended paragraph 33.
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PBE FRS 46 First-time Adoption of PBE Standards by Entities Previously
Applying NZ IFRS

Paragraphs 1, 3, 5 and the definitions in paragraph 9 are amended. Paragraph 43.2 is added.
Paragraphs 30—-39 (and their associated headings) are deleted.
New text is underlined and deleted text is struck through.

Objective

1. The objective of this Standard is to set out the transitional provisions for the first-time application of Public
Benefit Entity Standards (PBE Standards) by a Tier 1 or Tier 2 public benefit entity that previously applied
NZIFRSPBE; NZ IFRS-NZIFRS-DiffRep or NZ IFRS RDR.

Scope

3. This Standard applies where an entity previously presented general purpose financial statements
that complied with NZHFRS-PBE—NZ IFRS—NZIFRSDiff—Rep or NZIFRSRDR in the
immediately preceding period.

5. An entity that previously applied this Standard or previously presented general purpose financial
statements that complied with NZ-H-RS-PBE; NZ IFRS-NZH-RS-Biff Rep or NZ IFRS RDR but
not in the immediately preceding period and is transitioning again to Tier 1 PBE Standards or Tier 2
PBE Standards shall apply PBE FRS 47 First-time Adoption of PBE Standards by Entities Other Than
Those Previously Applying NZ IFRS.

Definitions

9. The following terms are used in this Standard with the meanings specified:
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Effective Date

43.2 2018 Omnibus Amendments to Tier 1 and Tier 2 PBE Standards, issued in [Date], amended
paragraphs 1, 3, 5 and 9, and deleted paragraphs 30-39 and Appendix A.
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The footnote to paragraph BC4 is amended. Paragraph BC8 and the related heading are added.
New text is underlined and deleted text is struck through.

Basis for Conclusions

BC4. The NZASB did not anticipate that the adoption of PBE Standards, by those entities previously applying
standards in the NZ IFRS suites of standards! would result in many changes to accounting policies because
most IPSASs are based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS).

1 The NZ IFRS suites of standards at the time FRS 46 was issued included the-various-sets-of standards-based-ontHFRS-that-wilt

exist-at-the-time-of-transition—neluding-NZ IFRS PBE, NZ IFRS, NZ IFRS Diff Rep and NZ IFRS RDR. NZ IFRS PBE and
NZ IFRS Diff Rep were subsequently withdrawn.

2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards

BC8. 2018 Omnibus Amendments to PBE Standards amended PBE FRS 46 by removing references
NZ IFRS PBE and NZ IFRS Diff Rep. These suites of standards were in use at the time that PBE FRS 46
was first issued but were subsequently withdrawn.

‘Appendix Ais deleted.

Appendix A

Recognition and Measurement Differential Reporting Concessions Previously Available
Under NZ IFRS PBE and NZ IFRS Diff Rep

[Deleted]
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Part F: Editorial Corrections

The following editorial corrections have been identified by the NZASB.
New text is underlined and deleted text is struck through.

Standard Paragraph | Amendment

PBE IPSAS 3 26 In the absence of a PBE Standard that specifically applies to a transaction,

Accounting other event, or condition, management may, in accordance with

Policies, paragraph 4415, apply an accounting policy from (a) the most recent

Changes in pronouncements of other standard-setting bodies, and (b) accepted

Accounting practices for public benefit entities, or in the absence of such practices

Estimates and accepted practices for for-profit entities, but only to the extent that these

Errors are consistent with paragraph 4415. Examples of such pronouncements
include standards and interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board. If, following an amendment of such a
pronouncement, the entity chooses to change an accounting policy, that
change is accounted for and disclosed as a voluntary change in accounting
policy.

PBE IPSAS 11 | 1G24 The status of three construction contracts in progress at the end of Year 1

Construction is as follows:

Contracts

PBE IPSAS 17 | AG1 PBE Standards define fair value as the amount for which an asset could be

Property, Plant exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in

and Equipment an arm’s length transaction. An entity that elects to measure a class of
property, plant and equipment using the revaluation model, as permitted by
paragraph 44 of this Standard, may need to estimate the fair value of certain
assets. This Application Guidance provides guidance on the estimation of
fair value using the depreciated replacement cost method® in the
circumstances permitted by paragraph 48 of this Standard.
2 h Q A 0 and A a aa hacad

PBE IPSAS 22 | 36 PBE IPSAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements® identifies a complete

Disclosure of set of financial statements...

Financial

Information

about the

General

Government

Sector

5

This reference to the title of PBE IPSAS 1 is added to the list of Generic amendments to PBE Standards in Appendix A of PBE FRS 48.
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Standard Paragraph | Amendment

PBE IPSAS 32 | AG49 ... The grantor compensates the operator only to the extent of the usage of
Service the service concession asset, and accounts for such payments as expenses
Concession in accordance with PBE IPSAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.®
Arrangements:

Grantor

PBE IPSAS 35 | Example 8A | Through its appointees on the board, the housing agency has the ability to
Consolidated use its power to affect the nature andor amount of its benefits from the
Financial association.

Statements

Example 35 | (¢) The provincial government can use its power over the trust to

affect the nature ardor amount of the trust’s benefits.

Example 37 | As the Health Department also has the ability to use its power over the
authority to affect the nature andor amount of the Department’

PBE IFRS 3 64.4 PBE IPSAS 35 Consolidated Financial Statements and PBE IPSAS 37
Business Joint-Ventures, issued in January 2017...
Combinations

B67(d)(iii) A reconciliation of the carrying amount of goodwill at the beginning and
end of the reporting period showing separately:

(iii)  Adjustments resulting from the subsequent recognition of deferred
tax assets during the reporting period.in-accerdance-with
paragraph-67:

B63 Examples of other PBE Standards that provide guidance on subsequently
measuring and accounting for assets acquired and liabilities assumed or
incurred in a business combination include:

(d)~(e} [Not used]

(e)  PBE IPSAS 35 provides guidance on accounting for changes in a
controlling entity’s ownership interest in a controlled entity after
control is obtained.

Definitions Definitions

2.4

PBE IFRS 9 Appendix D | PBE IFRS 9 Appendix D Amendments to other Standards added
Financial paragraph 49M to PBE IPSAS 30 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
Instruments Paragraph 49M should read:

*49M. When required by paragraph 49K, an entity shall disclose the
following for financial assets and financial liabilities that have been
reclassified so that they are measured at amortised cost and, in the
case of financial assets, that have been reclassified out of fair value
through surplus efor deficit ...

6 This reference to the title of PBE IPSAS 1 is added to the list of Generic amendments to PBE Standards in Appendix A of PBE FRS 48.
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Standard Paragraph | Amendment
PBE IAS 12 29 (1) This comparison shows the extent to which the future taxable
Income Taxes profit is sufficient for the entity to deduct the amounts resulting
from the reversal of those deductible temporary differences; and
(i) Ignores taxable amounts arising from deductible temporary
differences that are expected to originate in future periods, because
the deferred tax asset arising from these deductible temporary
differences will itself require future taxable profit in order to be
utilised; or
81*(ab) The amount of income tax relating to each component of other
comprehensive revenue and expense (see paragraph 62 of
PBE IPSAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
PBE FRS 47 RDR 8.1 () Its first set of prospective financial statements presented in
First-time accordance with PBE FRS 42 Prespective-Financial Statements
Adoption of where an entity ...
PBE Standards
by Entities
Other Than
Those
Previously
Applying
NZ IFRS
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Part G Effective date

The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after [Date]. As indicated in the relevant effective
date paragraphs within standards, earlier application is permitted in most instances.
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NZ ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS
BOARD

EXTERNAL REPORTING BOARD

Te Kawai Arahi Pirongo Mawaho

Memorandum
Date: 15 June 2018
To: NZASB Members
From: Vanessa Sealy-Fisher
Subject: IPSASB ED 64 Leases

Recommendations?

1. We recommend that the Board:
(a)  NOTES the submissions received on IPSASB ED 64 Leases (ED 64);

(b)  AGREES to include in the draft comment letter a recommendation that the International
Public Sector Accounting Standard Board (IPSASB) specifically include perpetual leases
within the scope of ED 64;

(c)  AGREES not to make any other changes to the draft comment letter in response to
respondents’ comments; and

(d)  APPROVES the draft comment letter to the IPSASB on ED 64 (see agenda item 6.2).
Introduction

2. At the March meeting the Board considered the lessor accounting proposed in ED 64. The
majority of the Board members agreed that the derecognition approach for lessor accounting
is the best approach conceptually. However, they expressed support for the lessor accounting
in IFRS 16 Leases rather than the proposals in ED 64.

3. At the May meeting the Board considered the proposals for accounting for concessionary
leases by both the lessee and the lessor.

4. Regarding the lessee accounting for concessionary leases the Board agreed conceptually with
the proposals for the recognition of the concession. However, the Board had concerns with
(i) the links to the revenue project and the public sector measurement project, and
(i) cost-benefit issues, for example, determining the fair value of the lease, and whether the
benefits of recognising the concession would exceed the costs.

5. Regarding the lessor accounting for concessionary leases, the Board did not agree that the
accounting for a concessionary lease should be similar to the accounting for a concessionary
loan. This is because the proposed accounting for a concessionary lease grosses up income

1 This memo refers to the work of the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and uses registered trademarks
of the IFRS Foundation (for example, IFRS® Standards, IFRIC® Interpretations and IASB® papers).
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with no resulting cash flow. The Board tentatively decided that the credit entry for the

concession should reduce the carrying amount of the leased asset to reflect the loss of service
potential given up over the term of the lease.

6. At the May meeting feedback was also provided on the draft comment letter prepared for

that meeting. This feedback has been incorporated into the draft comment letter tabled at
this meeting.

Draft comment letter

7. In summary, the draft comment letter expresses the following views on the proposals in
ED 64.

(a)

(b)

Although we agree with the accounting model proposed for lessees in ED 64, we
disagree with the accounting model proposed for lessors. We also disagree with the
proposed accounting for concessionary leases by both the lessee and the lessor.

In light of our views, we recommend that the IPSASB:

(i) proceed with the proposals in ED 64 for lessee accounting, except for
concessionary leases;

(ii)  not proceed with the proposals in ED 64 for lessor accounting and instead
develops proposals based on IFRS 16 Leases; and

(iii)  not proceed at present with the proposals in ED 64 for concessionary leases. This
topic should be reconsidered at a later date after the IPSASB has made further
progress on related projects.

Submissions received

8. We have received three submissions on ED 64 as follows:
# Respondent Agenda item
R1 BDO 6.3.1
R2 Cornwall Park Trust Board 6.3.2
R3 Emerge Aotearoa 6.3.3
9. We have also received a copy of a comment letter submitted directly to the IPSASB (agenda
item 3.3.3).

10. R1 answered the specific matters for comment (SMC) in ED 64. R2 and R3 raised concerns
specific to their activities.

11. R1 agreed with all four SMCs in ED 64. This means that R1 agreed with:

(a)
(b)

(c)

199948.1

the right-of-use model proposed for lessee accounting;

the IPSASB’s decision to depart from the IFRS 16 Leases risks and rewards model for
lessor accounting;

the right-of-use model proposed for lessor accounting; and
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(d)  the proposal to measure concessionary leases at fair value, with:

(i) the lessor recognising the subsidy granted as a day-one expense and revenue
over the lease term consistent with concessionary loans; and

(i)  the lessee recognising the subsidy as revenue in accordance with IPSAS 23
Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).

R2 commented specifically on land leased out for residential occupation on a perpetual
right-of-renewal basis with 21-year rent reviews. R2 is of the view that:

(a) ED 64 does not explicitly deal with perpetual leases, and it should do so;

(b)  theland is already included on the Trust Board’s statement of financial position so also
including the ground leases on the statement of financial position is not appropriate:
increased disclosure would be more appropriate; and

(c) theinconsistency with IFRS 16 creates divergence and confusion in the market place:
while the NFP sector may have differences, leases is an area where there needs to be
harmony with the for-profit sector.

We agree with the R2’s comments about perpetual leases and have included a short
paragraph in the Board’s comment letter to the IPSASB.

R3 commented on the proposals in ED 64 that are likely to have the most impact on their
accounting and financial statements, which are as follows.

(a)  The right-of-use model for both the lessee and the lessor.

(i) R3 is of the opinion that for lessee accounting this model grosses-up the assets
and liabilities on the balance sheet, with very little effect on net assets, and will
add very little substance to the understandability of the entity’s position.

(ii) R3 ultimately supports the right-of-use model for lessee accounting for the
same reasons that this model was introduced by IFRS 16. However, R3
encourages the consideration of amending IPSAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements to provide the reader with clarity regarding the right-of-use model.

(iii) R3 supports the specific departures from IFRS 16 as explored in ED 64. They feel
that applying a right-of-use model for both lessees and lessors will add
transparency and consistency across the not-for-profit sector.

(b)  Accounting for concessionary leases.

(i) Some of the properties rented from Community Group Housing (CGH) (a subset
of Housing New Zealand) are ring-fenced or purpose built for particular
community and social housing outcomes. R3 is of the view that it is therefore
arguable that the fair value for those properties would be difficult to obtain, or
more costly to determine, given their specialised nature.

(ii)  Recognising a day-one expense or revenue for the concessionary non-exchange
component does not fairly reflect the underlying nature of the transaction, which
is that the expense or revenue as a result of the subsidy is fundamentally tied to
the length of the lease and should be recognised in this manner.

Page 3 0of 4
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(iii)  The costs of compliance for concessionary arrangements would significantly
outweigh the benefits, for example, the costs of determining the fair value of
concessionary leases.

15. Except to add a short paragraph which recommends that perpetual leases be included in the
scope of ED 64, we have not made any changes to the draft comment letter to incorporate
respondents’ comments.

Next steps

16. Comments to the IPSASB on ED 64 are due by 30 June 2018. We have been granted an
extension of time until 5 July to submit our comment letter.

17. We plan to seek final sign-off on the letter by the Chair and any other Board members that
wish to see the final letter.
Attachments
Agenda item 6.2: Draft comment letter to IPSASB
Agenda item 6.3: Submissions received
6.3.1: BDO
6.3.2: Cornwall Park Trust Board

6.3.3: Emerge Aotearoa

Page 4 of 4
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NZ ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS
BOARD

EXTERNAL REPORTING BOARD

Te Kawai Arahi Piirongo Mowaho

30 June 2018

Mr John Stanford

Technical Director

International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board
International Federation of Accountants

277 Wellington Street West

Toronto

Ontario M5V 3H2

CANADA

Submitted to: www.ifac.org
Dear John
ED 64 Leases

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on ED 64 Leases (ED 64). The ED has been exposed in
New Zealand and some New Zealand constituents may comment directly to you.

We are pleased that the IPSASB has undertaken this project to update the accounting for leases in
IPSAS. This is a significant project which is also impacted by other ongoing IPSASB projects (for
example, revenue and non-exchange transactions, and public sector measurement). In addition to
commenting on the proposals in ED 64 we have highlighted areas where we consider that further
work on those other projects may be required before aspects of this project can be progressed
further (in particular, concessionary leases).

Although we agree with the accounting model proposed for lessees in ED 64, we disagree with the
accounting model proposed for lessors. We also disagree with the proposed accounting for
concessionary leases by both the lessee and the lessor.

In light of our views, we recommend that the IPSASB:
(a) proceed with the proposals in ED 64 for lessee accounting, except for concessionary leases;

(b)  not proceed with the proposals in ED 64 for lessor accounting and instead develops proposals
based on IFRS 16 Leases; and

(c)  not proceed at present with the proposals in ED 64 for concessionary leases. This topic should
be reconsidered at a later date after the IPSASB has made further progress on related
projects.



http://www.ifac.org/

We have received feedback that the scope of ED 64 does not appear to include perpetual leases, for
example, 99-year leases on land and with rent reviews undertaken on a regular basis (such as every
21 years). We recommend that the IPSASB consider including these types of leases in the scope of an
IPSAS based on ED 64.

The IPSASB initiated this project following the completion of IFRS 16 Leases by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB). We support this strategy as it puts the IPSASB in a position to
benefit from the detailed analysis and lengthy debates that occurred during the development of
IFRS 16. The IASB’s project considered a number of approaches for both lessors and lessees and
involved a number of exposure drafts. The final requirements in IFRS 16 were determined after due
consideration of both the conceptual and practical arguments identified by the IASB’s constituents.

We acknowledge that public sector specific circumstances may lead the IPSASB to form different
views about the merits of various lessor accounting approaches in contrast to the IASB. However, we
do not think that the arguments for and against various lessor accounting approaches have been
sufficiently explored in the Basis for Conclusions on ED 64 (BC). Where the IPSASB has departed from
IFRS 16 the public sector specific reasons for doing so should be clearly articulated, including the
conceptual, practical and user information considerations.

We consider that the BC is incomplete and, as a result, does not provide adequate information for
constituents to make an informed decision regarding the lessor accounting proposals, particularly
for those constituents that are not fully familiar with the IASB’s deliberations during its project to
develop IFRS 16. The BC does not include the counter-arguments against Approach 1 (right-of-use
model proposed in ED 64) nor the counter-arguments in favour of Approach 2 (derecognition
approach). In developing IFRS 16 the IASB proposed approaches which are similar to Approach 1 and
Approach 2 considered by the IPSASB. Inclusion in the BC of the IASB’s reasons for rejecting both of
these approaches and instead choosing the lessor accounting approach in IFRS 16 would have
provided a more balanced view of the advantages and disadvantages of both approaches.

In our view the omission of these counter-arguments from the BC may be interpreted as giving a
biased view of the conceptual arguments for and against each approach, and means that
constituents have not been provided with some key information that is necessary to make an
informed evaluation of the lessor accounting proposals in ED 64. In our opinion, the BCis an
important document for explaining the IPSASB’s deliberations and should, therefore, include a
comprehensive and balanced view of the proposals in ED 64.

Our recommendations and responses to the Specific Matters for Comment are set out in Appendix 1
to this letter. If you have any queries or require clarification of any matters in this letter, please
contact Vanessa Sealy-Fisher (Vanessa.Sealy-Fisher@xrb.govt.nz) or me.

Yours sincerely

Kimberley Crook
Chair — New Zealand Accounting Standards Board

Page 2 of 14
199917.1


mailto:Vanessa.Sealy-Fisher@xrb.govt.nz

APPENDIX 1

Response to Specific Matters for Comment

Specific Matter for Comment 1:

The IPSASB decided to adopt the IFRS 16 right-of-use model for lessee accounting (see

paragraphs BC6—BC8 for IPSASB’s reasons). Do you agree with the IPSASB’s decision? If not, please
explain the reasons. If you do agree, please provide any additional reasons not already discussed in
the basis for conclusion.

The NZASB agrees with the IPSASB’s decision to adopt the IFRS 16 right-of-use model for lessee
accounting. We agree that the right-of-use asset and the lease liability meet the definition of, and
the recognition criteria for, an asset and a liability respectively in the IPSASB’s Conceptual
Framework for General Purpose Financial Reporting by Public Sector Entities (the Conceptual
Framework).

We agree that for lease accounting it is important that IPSAS be updated to reflect the latest thinking
of the IASB in IFRS 16. Where transactions are the same for the public and private sector it is
important that convergence with IFRS® Standards is maintained. This process ultimately contributes
to the IPSASB developing high-quality IPSAS.

From outreach activities conducted in New Zealand, we did not identify any public sector specific
reasons to depart from the IFRS 16 right-of-use model for lessee accounting.

Specific Matter for Comment 2:

The IPSASB decided to depart from the IFRS 16 risks and rewards model for lessor accounting in this
Exposure Draft (see paragraphs BC9—BC13 for IPSASB'’s reasons). Do you agree with the IPSASB’s
decision? If not, please explain the reasons. If you do agree, please provide any additional reasons
not already discussed in the basis for conclusion.

The NZASB does not agree with the IPSASB’s decision to depart from the model for lessor accounting
in IFRS 16. See also our response to SMC 3 below for further comments.

We acknowledge that the lessor accounting in IFRS 16 (based on risks and rewards incidental to
ownership) is not consistent with the lessee accounting (based on control), and that a control-based
approach would be more consistent with the Conceptual Framework. However, after having
debated the options considered over the course of IFRS 16’s development and the matters that led
the IASB to largely retain its previous lessor accounting requirements, we do not believe that the
case put forward by the IPSASB for departing from IFRS 16 is strong enough. Our reasons for this are
as follows.

(a)  Inourview the IPSASB appears to have ignored some factors, such as user information needs,
that would support the retention of the IFRS 16 approach.

(b)  The IPSASB has argued that the approach proposed in ED 64 is consistent with its Conceptual
Framework and is an improvement on the IFRS 16 approach. We think that both arguments
are debatable.
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In preparing our response to this SMC we have carefully considered the IPSASB’s reasons for

departing from IFRS 16. The IPSASB’s key reasons for departing from IFRS 16 appear to be those

outlined in paragraph BC10. We are not convinced that the arguments in paragraph BC10(a)

surrounding consolidation are sufficiently different in the public sector to warrant a departure from

IFRS 16. There will always be adjustments needed for consolidation purposes, for example, to

eliminate inter-entity transactions and align accounting policies.

We have some specific comments on paragraph BC10 as follows.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Paragraph BC10(a) states that if the lessor classifies the lease as a finance lease the underlying

asset would not be recognised by either the lessee or the lessor, and that separate records

would need to be maintained for consolidation purposes. We doubt that this situation would

arise often in practice for the following reasons.

(i)

(ii)

The types of leasing arrangements discussed in paragraph BC11 (where a centralised
entity undertakes the property management for a government) are unlikely to involve
finance leases. Feedback from New Zealand constituents indicated that these types of
leases are classified as operating leases, in which case the underlying asset remains on
the lessor’s statement of financial position.

The types of finance lease arrangements commonly seen in the corporate sector (such
as manufacturers or dealers providing finance to customers, or banks providing
financing to companies) are unlikely to occur between public sector entities.

Paragraph BC10(a) also states that additional records would be needed if the lessor classifies

the lease as an operating lease (because the lessor will not recognise a lease receivable but

the lessee will recognise a lease liability). We question this statement on the following

grounds.

(i)

(i)

From the perspective of the consolidated reporting entity there would be no lease, and
therefore no lease receivable. The lease accounting would need to be eliminated, and
the underlying leased asset would be accounted for in accordance with the relevant
standard. The creation of a lease receivable is not necessary to report assets in the
consolidated financial statements.

Paragraph BC10 seems to assume that the non-recognition of a lease receivable by the
lessor would make it more difficult to eliminate the lease liability of the lessee during
the consolidation process. However, even if the lessor recognised a lease receivable, the
lease receivable and the lease liability would not necessarily be the same amount (for
example, because of different discount rates). Also, for consolidation purposes, there
are other ways of eliminating lease accounting by the lessee and lessor that might be
more efficient, irrespective of how the lessor accounts for the lease.

According to paragraph BC10(b), using different accounting models in the financial statements

of the lessee and the lessor might make leasing transactions less understandable to some

199917.1
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users. However, there are some counter-arguments that have not been explored in the Basis
for Conclusions.

(i) There appears to be no discussion of whether applying a different lessor accounting
model in the public sector to the lessor accounting model in the private sector would
make the financial statements of public sector entities less understandable to users.

(ii)  One of the key reasons for the IASB retaining the existing lessor accounting model was
that users of the financial statements preferred the existing approach to other
approaches considered by the IASB. Other approaches considered by the IASB included
an approach similar to the lessor model proposed in ED 64. This suggests that users of
the financial statements would be better served by maintaining the current approach to
lessor accounting. As explained in our response to SMC 3, there are valid reasons why
the IASB retained the requirement for a lessor to classify a lease as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

In addition to the concerns we have raised about the arguments in paragraph BC10, we are
concerned about the impact of different accounting requirements for lessors where a public sector
controlling entity prepares consolidated financial statements that include for-profit controlled
entities. A significant amount of work will be required on consolidation where the controlled for-
profit entity is a lessor that applies IFRS 16 and the public sector controlling entity applies the model
proposed in ED 64. We are aware that New Zealand is not the only country that would be impacted
by having a different accounting model under IPSAS to the lessor model under IFRS 16.

Specific Matter for Comment 3:

The IPSASB decided to propose a single right-of-use model for lessor accounting consistent with
lessee accounting (see paragraphs BC34-BC40 for IPSASB'’s reasons). Do you agree with the
requirements for lessor accounting proposed in this Exposure Draft? If not, what changes would you
make to those requirements?

The NZASB does not agree with the lessor accounting model proposed in ED 64.

During the development of IFRS 16 the IASB proposed a similar lessor model, the performance
obligation approach, set out in IASB ED/2010/9 Leases. Many of the IASB’s respondents were of the
view that the performance obligation approach would result in an entity double counting its assets
in the statement of financial position, and questioned how one set of cash flows (those received
from the lessee) could relate to both the lease receivable and the underlying asset. Many also
qguestioned how the obligation to permit the lessee to use the asset would meet the definition of a
liability. We agree with these views and consider the reasons for not supporting the performance
obligation approach for lessor accounting in the private sector are also applicable to the public
sector.

Our views on the two approaches discussed in the Basis for Conclusions in ED 64 are explained
below.
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Concerns with Approach 1 and the IPSASB’s reasons given for supporting Approach 1

Paragraph BC36 sets out the IPSASB’s conclusions for proposing the lessor accounting model in

ED 64 (Approach 1). Under Approach 1 the right-of-use asset is considered to be a separate

economic phenomenon to the underlying asset. Under this approach the lessor recognises both the

underlying asset (in its entirety) and a lease receivable. We have the following concerns with the

conclusions reached in relation to Approach 1.

(a)  The IPSASB has concluded that the lessor has retained control of the entire underlying asset,

but the Basis for Conclusions does not provide any explanation of how the IPSASB reached

that conclusion. In considering whether the lessor has control of the asset, we raise the

following matters.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

199917.1

Paragraph 5.11 of the Conceptual Framework states that “...control of the resource
entails the ability of the entity to use the resource (or direct other parties on its use)...”.
However, as the lessor has transferred the right to use the underlying asset to the
lessee for the term of the lease, it is unclear to us how the lessor can have the ability to
use the underlying asset or direct other parties on its use during the term of the lease.
The lessor may still have some residual rights to the asset but, in our view, these rights
are not equivalent to the lessor having control over the originally recognised resource.

Paragraph BC36(d) draws parallels between the thinking underlying IPSAS 32 Service
Concession Arrangements: Grantor and the proposed lease accounting in ED 64. In our
view, a comparison of the requirements in IPSAS 32 with the proposed lessor
accounting is not appropriate because the control that the grantor has over the service
concession asset is not the same as the control that the lessor has over the underlying
asset in a lease. A grantor controls or regulates the services that the operator must
provide, to whom the operator must provide them and at what price (IPSAS 32,
paragraph 9(a)). A lessor grants the lessee a right to use the lease asset but has no say
in how the lessee operates the asset, what services are provided and what price the
lessee charges for those services. Because of the significant differences in the rights of
the grantor versus the rights of the lessor relating to the use of the asset during the
terms of the arrangement, it is not valid to use the conclusion in IPSAS 32 (that the
grantor has control over the service concession asset in a service concession
arrangement) as the basis for concluding that the lessor has control over the entire
leased asset in a lease arrangement. In addition, this is an example of where the
proposals in ED 64 are being based on standards-level requirements that have not yet
been assessed for consistency with the Conceptual Framework.

The definition of an asset in the IASB’s Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting is
similar to the definition of an asset in the IPSASB’s Conceptual Framework. However,
the IASB has concluded that the rights of the lessor under a lease agreement consist of
two sets of rights, being (i) the lease receivable, and (ii) the rights retained in the
underlying leased asset (see paragraphs BC35—BC40 of IFRS 16), rather than the
underlying asset itself. Furthermore, in March 2018 the IASB published a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting which has a revised asset definition and
more discussion of the unit of account and derecognition than the 2010 version. This
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revised pronouncement explains that (i) an asset comprises several rights which are
often treated as a single unit of account, and (ii) that derecognition is the removal of all
or part of a recognised asset. We think that these ideas could be particularly useful
when thinking about accounting for leases and encourage the IPSASB to consider these
ideas when the IPSASB undertakes the limited review of its Conceptual Framework.!

(b)  We also have the following concerns with the proposals in ED 64 for the recognition of a

liability (unearned revenue) by the lessor.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Paragraph BC53 acknowledges that (i) recognising the credit entry as a liability until the
revenue recognition criteria are met may not be consistent with the Conceptual
Framework, and (ii) recognising revenue directly in the statement of financial position
would not be consistent with existing IPSAS. We are of the view that the credit entry
does not meet the definition of a liability because there is no outflow of resources by
the lessor.

One of the IPSASB’s reasons for not adopting the IFRS 16 lessor model is that the “risks
and rewards incidental to ownership” model in IFRS 16 is not consistent with the lessee
accounting control-based model. However, ED 64 includes several references to IPSAS 9
Revenue from Exchange Transactions which is also based on risks and rewards. We think
it is inconsistent to argue against a risks and rewards approach and then refer a lessor
to a standard that is based on that approach. We acknowledge that the IPSASB is
working on proposals to update its revenue standards, but this could be one example of
where another project needs to be further advanced before significant changes to
lessor accounting can be fully considered.

We question how a lessor can continue to have a performance obligation (to make the
underlying asset available) over the term of the lease when the lessee accounting
model is based on the premise that the right to use the asset has been delivered to the
lessee at the commencement of the lease.

(c)  We agree with the conclusion in paragraph BC9(b) that the right-of-use asset and the

underlying leased asset are different economic phenomena. However, it does not follow that

the economic benefits/service potential embodied in the right-of-use asset are additional to

the economic benefits/service potential embodied in the underlying leased asset.

Rejection of Approach 2 by the IPSASB

The IPSASB considered and rejected Approach 2. Under Approach 2 the right of use asset is

considered to be a component of the underlying asset. The lessor would derecognise the component

of the underlying asset that is transferred to the lessee and would recognise a residual asset (as well

as a lease receivable). Paragraph BC38 states that Approach 2 is not consistent with IPSASB literature

and provides four reasons to support this statement. We disagree with those reasons as follows.

1 This project is identified as a priority project for 2019-2023 in the IPSASB’s Proposed Strategy and Work
Plan 2019-2023.
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Paragraph BC38(a) states that Approach 2 is not consistent with the principles in other IPSAS
because it requires the derecognition of a portion of the underlying asset. As explained below, we do

not think that derecognition of a portion of an asset is inconsistent with the Conceptual Framework

and note that partial derecognition is already required by some standards.

(a)

(b)

Paragraph 6.10 of the Conceptual Framework refers to the derecognition of an element,
which in this case is an asset. An asset is defined in paragraph 5.6 of the Conceptual
Framework as “A resource...”. Paragraph 5.7 of the Conceptual Framework explains that “A
resource is an item with service potential or the ability to generate economic benefits.
Physical form is not a necessary condition of a resource. ...”. Nowhere in the discussion of
assets does it suggest that resources, once recognised as an asset, are not divisible. Simple
examples such as cash and inventory are clearly divisible, and portions of the carrying amount
of certain assets are derecognised when assets are consumed or sold.

A number of existing IPSAS require the derecognition of portions of recognised assets. Some
examples follow.

e IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement requires the derecognition
of a portion of a financial asset when it is transferred to another party (and certain
criteria are met).

e IPSAS 17 Property, Plant and Equipment requires the derecognition of parts of the
property, plant and equipment (PP&E), for example, when replacing parts of the PP&E
item or if part of a building is demolished. Although the division of the asset, and the
derecognition of those parts of the asset that have been disposed of, is based on physical
components, the basic point is that parts of the asset are derecognised.

e |IPSAS 37 Joint Arrangements requires a party to a joint operation to recognise and
derecognise parts of PP&E. For example, if a party to a joint operation transfers an item
of PP&E into the joint operation, it must derecognise the share of the PP&E item now
held by other parties to the joint operation while continuing to recognise the retained
portion (its share of the asset now held jointly).

A similar outcome to Approach 2 could be achieved using a full derecognition approach. The
execution of the lease could be regarded as resulting in the entity derecognising the
underlying leased asset in its entirety and recognising two new assets — the lease receivable
and the residual ownership interest in the PP&E. So, in the same way that the right-of-use
asset under a lease is a different economic phenomenon to the underlying asset (the PP&E),
the residual ownership interest of the lessor in the underlying asset can be viewed as a
different economic phenomenon from the underlying leased asset.

We also disagree with the other reasons in paragraph BC38.

(a)

Paragraph BC38(b) states that Approach 2 is not consistent with the IPSASB literature because
it is more complex and costly than Approach 1. Both Approach 1 and Approach 2 are more
complex and costly than the existing lessor accounting — so complexity and cost would be an
argument for retaining the existing lessor accounting, rather than for preferring one new
approach over another new approach.
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(b)  Paragraph BC38(c) appears to be included in error, as it is discussing the ‘risks and rewards’
lessor accounting model in which leases are classified as operating or finance leases, not
Approach 2 (which is a derecognition approach).

(c)  Paragraph BC38(d) states that Approach 2 is not consistent with IPSAS 32’s requirements. We
have outlined our concerns with basing lessor accounting on the grantor accounting
requirements in IPSAS 32 earlier in this letter. We are also of the view that at some point the
requirements in IPSAS 32 should be assessed against the Conceptual Framework for
consistency, and this could result in changes to the requirements in IPSAS 32 and different
conclusions than those reached when IPSAS 32 was first developed.

Our suggestion for lessor accounting

We recommend that the IPSASB does not pursue the performance obligation approach (Approach 1)
for lessor accounting. In our view, it is conceptually flawed and, in particular, it results in the
overstatement of the lessor’s total assets, which is misleading.

Although we support the conceptual reasoning underlying the derecognition approach (Approach 2),
we consider that there are strong practical reasons to support the IFRS 16 lessor accounting model.

. The IFRS 16 model avoids introducing unnecessary differences between IFRS and IPSAS
requirements by having a consistent approach to lessor accounting across the public sector
and the corporate sector. This is beneficial for groups which comprise both public sector and
for-profit entities and is less confusing for users of the financial statements.

. The derecognition approach is complex to apply in practice, as evidenced by responses to the
IASB’s exposure draft in which this approach was proposed.

We recommend, therefore, that the IPSASB does not proceed with the proposals in ED 64 for lessor
accounting and instead develops proposals based on IFRS 16.

Specific Matter for Comment 4:

For lessors, the IPSASB proposes to measure concessionary leases at fair value and recognize the
subsidy granted to lessees as a day-one expense and revenue over the lease term consistent with
concessionary loans (see paragraphs BC77—-BC96 for IPSASB'’s reasons). For lessees, the IPSASB
proposes to measure concessionary leases at fair value and recognize revenue in accordance with
IPSAS 23 (see paragraphs BC112—-BC114 for IPSASB’s reasons). Do you agree with the requirements
to account for concessionary leases for lessors and lessees proposed in this Exposure Draft? If not,
what changes would you make to those requirements?

We are aware that, over the years, entities applying IPSAS have requested the IPSASB to develop
requirements for the accounting for concessionary leases, for example, international agencies that
are provided with office space in cities around the world. The proposals in ED 64 for lessees would
likely be appropriate in such circumstances because the fair value of the lease can be determined
and, therefore, the assets and liabilities can be reliably measured.
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However, we are of the view that there are many circumstances where the proposals in ED 64 for
concessionary leases may not be appropriate for both lessees and lessors because of the challenges
with measuring the fair value of the lease and other reasons, as discussed further below.

Accounting for concessionary leases by lessees

Conceptually we agree with the proposals for the recognition of the concession by the lessee, but
we do have some concerns regarding the proposals.

Some of the IPSASB’s decisions regarding the proposals in ED 64 are linked to other active IPSASB
projects, for example, the revenue and non-exchange expenses project and the public sector
measurement project. We are of the view that the IPSASB should first make progress on these
projects, in particular, amendments to IPSAS 23 and developing guidance on what is meant by fair
value in the public sector (especially for assets with restricted use), before progressing the proposals
in ED 64. This would avoid unnecessary changes in the short to medium-term to the accounting for
the concessionary portion of the lease. Although some New Zealand constituents supported the
IPSASB’s proposals for the recognition of the concession by the lessee, they raised questions about
how to measure fair value (as discussed further below) and raised similar issues about when revenue
should be recognised (e.g. on commencement of the lease or over the lease term) as have been
raised in the revenue and non-exchange expenses project.

We also have concerns about whether the benefits of recognising and reporting the concession
would exceed the costs of determining the fair value of the lease. For example, where the leased
asset is of a specialised nature (for example, a school) or there are restrictions in the lease
agreement (for example, an entity is permitted to undertake only certain activities from the leased
property), the market value of the lease may be difficult to determine because of a lack of
information about such leases. In some cases, the contractual lease payments could represent the
fair value of the lease because of the specialised nature of the asset or the restrictions in the lease.
ED 64 does not appear to cater for these types of circumstances. A further concern is that the
valuation costs that lessees would incur in applying the proposals in ED 64 could be better utilised by
the lessee (bearing in mind that concessionary leases are generally intended to support entities with
complementary objectives to the lessor).

Our recommendation for accounting for concessionary leases by lessees

Although we agree conceptually with the proposals for lessees, at present we do not agree that
lessees should be required to recognise the subsidy component of a concessionary lease for cost-
benefit reasons (as explained above). We think that disclosure about the existence of the lease, the
fact that it’s on concessionary terms and any key conditions of the lease would provide useful
information for users. Disclosure would also provide flexibility for a lessee to provide more
contextual information about its concessionary leases, for example, where specialised activities are
undertaken from prime properties, or the lessee undertakes activities that complement the
objectives of the grantor.

We are also of the view that the IPSASB should further progress both its revenue project and its
public sector measurement project and then reconsider the accounting for concessionary leases by
lessees. This would avoid unnecessary changes to accounting requirements that depend on decisions
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made by the IPSASB during the development of other projects that have an impact on the proposals
in ED 64. In undertaking this further work, we recommend that the IPSASB also considers the
guidance developed by the Australian Accounting Standards Board on accounting for concessionary
leases by the lessee.

Accounting for concessionary leases by lessors

We do not agree with the proposals for accounting for concessionary leases by lessors. In particular,
we do not agree that the proposed accounting by the lessor for a concessionary lease is similar to
the existing accounting treatment by the grantor for a concessionary loan. More generally, we do
not agree with the proposed accounting for the concessionary portion by lessors.

In our view, the IPSASB has mischaracterised the current accounting treatment by the grantor for a
concessionary loan. Our understanding of the accounting treatment by the grantor of a
concessionary loan is illustrated by means of an example.

Example

A loan of $100 (principal) with zero interest is granted (the transaction is not a transaction with owners). Market
interest rates are 10% and the net present value of the future cash inflows (calculated at market rates) is $80.

As per paragraphs AG88 and AG89 of IPSAS 29, the $100 paid to the borrower is divided into two components.

New loan granted

Dr Loan 80
Dr Grant expense 20
Cr Bank 100

(Payment of the loan)

The future cash flows to be received over the term of the loan ($100 principal and zero interest per the loan
documentation) are equivalent to a loan of $80 at normal market rates.

Although the loan is documented as $100 at zero interest, in economic terms, it is the same as a loan of $80 at 10%
interest. The accounting reflects the economics, not the legal form (loan documentation) of the transaction.

Over the term of the loan the $100 cash inflows are treated as representing repayment of $80 principal and payment of
$20 interest (under the effective interest rate method of measuring financial assets at amortised cost).

Some people refer to the interest recognised under the effective interest rate method as “reversing” the original $20
expense, but this is not reflective of the economics that the accounting is intended to show. The $20 is the interest
revenue received on the $80 loan, and this is reflective of the actual cash flows received.

The mechanics of the effective interest rate method result in the expense and the interest revenue being the same
amount (that is, $20), which is likely causing some confusion.

Existing loan and then concession granted

Dr Loan 100

Cr Bank 100
(Loan at normal market rates)

Dr Expense 20

Cr Loan 20

(Concession granted — no interest to be paid)

In this case, the loan is granted at $100 at normal market rates. The existing loan is subsequently written down to
reflect the concession granted, that is, the loan is now interest free. The balance on the loan now represents principal of
$80 with interest at normal market rates of $20, which is reflective of the actual cash flow subsequently received.

Accounting for concessionary loans does not result in the grossing up of the interest revenue, as the
interest revenue recognised for a concessionary loan is supported by cash inflows (as illustrated in
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our example). In contrast, the proposals in ED 64 result in the grossing up and reporting of revenue
that is not supported by cash inflows.

When accounting for a concessionary loan, the loan is reported at a reduced amount (being $80 in
our example), not the nominal amount of the loan (being $100 in our example). This reduced
amount reflects the fact that the concession reduces the future economic benefits (present value of
the future cash inflows) to be derived from the loan below the nominal amount of the loan. In
contrast, the proposals in ED 64 do not reduce the carrying amount of the leased asset to reflect the
reduction in economic benefits/service potential to be derived from the leased asset as a
consequence of transferring economic benefits/service potential to the lessee without equivalent
consideration in return.

Therefore, we do not agree with either (i) the IPSASB’s characterisation of the accounting treatment
of concessionary loans or (ii) the accounting treatment for concessionary leases that involves the
grossing up of lease revenue, resulting in the reporting of lease revenue that is not supported by
cash inflows. Instead, if the concession is recognised, we consider it should result in the reduction of
the carrying amount of the leased asset to reflect the concession granted.

We also have some concerns regarding the costs of the proposals where a lessor grants hundreds of
concessionary leases and leases for zero or nominal consideration. For example, local governments
in New Zealand grant many concessionary leases to public sector and not-for-profit entities. The
concessions are a way of providing support to such entities and acknowledging the complementary
nature of their objectives and the goods and services they deliver. If those entities did not provide
those goods and services, local governments might have to undertake some of those activities
themselves. In some circumstances the value of the concessions granted may be immaterial to the
lessor, but the lessor would still incur costs in determining the value of those concessions and
forming a judgement on the materiality of the concessions.

Our recommendation for accounting for concessionary leases by lessors

As explained in SMC 3, we disagree with the lessor accounting proposed in ED 64. This means that
we also disagree with the proposed accounting for concessionary leases by lessors and, in particular,
recognition of the credit entry for the concession as revenue. And even under the lessor accounting
model proposed in ED64, we are of the view that the credit entry for the concession should be
against the leased asset if the lessor is to recognise the concession as an expense, as explained
above. Hence, irrespective of whether the IPSASB proceeds with its proposed lessor accounting
model or reverts to the IFRS 16 lessor accounting model (discussed below), we recommend that the
IPSASB does not proceed with the grossing up of lease revenue when accounting for a concessionary
lease.

Under the IFRS 16 lessor accounting model, if a lessor classifies a lease as a finance lease, the
concession would be recognised as part of the ‘sale’ of the asset. This could also be further explained
in the notes to the financial statements. If a lessor classifies a lease as an operating lease, the credit
entry should be against the leased asset.

We also believe that further consideration should be given to measurement of the concession
granted in situations in which the leased asset is measured using the cost model under IPSAS 17
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Property, Plant and Equipment, as it is likely to be more appropriate to measure the concession as an
allocation of the carrying amount of the leased asset rather than at fair value in this situation.

In addition, we also think the IPSASB should progress its non-exchange expenses project before
considering the lessor accounting for concessionary leases rather than referring the lessor to the
relevant international or national standard.

Leases for zero or nominal consideration

Leases for zero or nominal consideration are effectively scoped out of ED 64 per the diagrams
following paragraphs 22 and 62, and paragraph AG60 of ED 64. However, proposed new

paragraph 43A of IPSAS 23 requires the lessee to measure the right-of-use asset held by a lessee in
accordance with ED 64. We question the reason for this scope exclusion if the fair value of a right-of-
use asset acquired under a lease for zero or nominal consideration is measured in exactly the same
way as a right-of-use asset acquired under a concessionary lease. Drawing an artificial boundary
between concessionary leases and leases for zero or nominal consideration creates challenges for
preparers of financial statements.

We would prefer that ED 64 apply to all leases. We acknowledge that the definition of a lease under
both IFRS 16 and ED 64 requires “exchange for consideration” and that the IPSASB has wanted to
keep this definition. We also note that paragraphs BC112 and proposed new paragraph 123A of
IPSAS 23 refer to “concessionary leases for zero or nominal consideration”, and proposed new
paragraph 105C of IPSAS 23 refers to “at below market terms, including leases for zero or nominal
consideration.”. We recommend that the Scope section of ED 64 be amended to specifically include
leases for zero or nominal consideration. This can be achieved by adding guidance to explain that if a
transaction meets the definition of a lease other than “exchange for consideration”, then the
transaction is within the scope of ED 64. It could be argued that leases for nominal consideration are
within scope of ED 64 because there is some consideration paid.

If the IPSASB decides to continue with ED 64 and effectively exclude leases for zero or nominal
consideration, it is not helpful to refer lessors to the “relevant international or national standard” to
account for the concessionary portion of the lease (see diagram following paragraph 22, and
paragraph AG06(b)). It is not clear which standard the IPSASB would expect lessors to refer to. As
noted earlier, we are of the view that the non-exchange expenses project should be progressed
further if the IPSASB continues with the proposals for concessionary leases in ED 64.
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APPENDIX 2

Editorial corrections (new text is underlined and deleted text is struck through)

Reference Correction needed

Paragraph AG53 “optional lease payments” should not be italicised.

Paragraph 1G2 - Some diagrams below set out typical types of transactions involving identified assets

should read “provide | and provides references to IPSASs that apply those transactions. Other diagrams

references” twice identify types of leases and provides references to paragraphs in [draft] IPSAS [X]
(ED 64).

Paragraph 1G55 The title of IPSAS 9 should be italicised.

Example 12 ...maintaining the longreach computed tomography machine...

Example 22C Segment as a column heading — the ‘S’ should not be underlined.

Example 24 First journal entry: Cr Lease liability 16,100,000

Editorials to Amendments to Other IPSAS (new text is underlined and deleted text is struck through)

IPSAS Paragraph Correction needed
IPSAS 2 63E ...If an entity applies the amendments for a period ...
IPSAS 4 71C
IPSAS 5 42C ...If an entity applies the amendments for a period ...
IPSAS 27 | 58G
IPSAS 16 | Heading above Instructions (and paragraph 101F) say paragraph 8 “and its related heading”
paragraph 8 are deleted but the heading above paragraph 8 is not shown as struck
through.
Property-Interest Held-by-a-Lessee-underan-Operating-Lease
101F The wording in the paragraph is not the same as the wording in other new

effective date paragraphs. Other paragraphs start “Paragraphs....were
amended” but this paragraph starts “[draft] IPSAS [X] (ED 64)....”

IPSAS 19 | 13(b) ...applies to leases at market terms that becomes onerous
111D ...If an entity applies the amendments for a period ...
IPSAS 23 43A ...right-of-use assets held by a lessee is are measured...
105C Concessionary leases (including concessionary leasebacks) are granted-to-or

received by an entity at below market terms, ...

(the lessee receives the concessionary lease — IPSAS 23 deals with non-
exchange revenue)

123A (new) ...held by a lessee of concessionary leases ef for zero or nominal amount.

IG55 analysis The grant of CU6,900,000 ....and capital payments, is accounted for in
accordance with...

1G56(a) The title of IPSAS 9 should be italicised

IPSAS 40 | Instructions and | Paragraphs.....AG89 and its related heading are amended...
paragraph 126A
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Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above exposure draft.

We are making this submission to you to assist the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board
(NZASB) with the above Consultation Paper. We are happy for you to publish our comments
publically.

In responding we have addressed the specific questions for respondents in Appendix 1.
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Appendix 1 - Response to questions

Specific Matter for Comment 1

The IPSASB decided to adopt the IFRS 16 right-of-use model for lessee accounting (see paragraphs
BC6- BC8 for IPSASB’s reasons). Do you agree with the IPSASB’s decision? If not, please explain the

reasons. If you do agree, please provide any additional reasons not already discussed in the basis
for conclusions.

Yes, we agree with the IPSASB’s decision.

Moving to accounting for leases based on IFRS 16 will assist with reducing divergence in
accounting treatment for lessees between public benefit entities (PBEs) and for-profits
here in New Zealand.

Specific Matter for Comment 2

The IPSASB decided to depart from the IFRS 16 risks and rewards model for lessor accounting in this
Exposure Draft (see paragraphs BC9-BC13 for IPSASB’s reasons). Do you agree with the IPSASB’s
decision? If not, please explain the reasons. If you do agree, please provide any additional reasons
not already discussed in the basis for conclusions.

Yes, we agree with the IPSASB’s decision, to depart from the IFRS 16 risks and rewards
model for lessor accounting and instead require lessors to account for leases in a manner
consistent with the accounting requirements of lessees.

However, we do note that there will likely be consolidation adjustments required in
mixed groups, especially where a PBE entity has a for-profit controlled entity that is a
lessor, due to the different models adopted by the IPSASB and the IASB in this area. We
are uncertain as to the extent this scenario will occur, but additional guidance may be
required to be included.

Generally, our overall preference is that PBE standards be as consistent with NZ IFRSs as
much as possible. In this instance, however, we appreciate the need for and support the
divergence form the NZ IFRS model. We do recommend that this issue be raised with the
IASB when the post implementation review of IFRS 16 and that lessor accounting be
revised at this stage.

Specific Matter for Comment 3

The IPSASB decided to propose a single right-of-use model for lessor accounting consistent with
lessee accounting (see paragraphs BC34-BC40 for IPSASB’s reasons). Do you agree with the
requirements for lessor accounting proposed in this Exposure Draft? If not, what changes would you
make to those requirements?

Yes, we agree with the IPSASB’s decision.

Specific Matter for Comment 4

For lessors, the IPSASB proposes to measure concessionary leases at fair value and recognize the
subsidy granted to lessees as a day-one expense and revenue over the lease term consistent with
concessionary loans (see paragraphs BC77-BC96 for IPSASB’s reasons). For lessees, the IPSASB
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proposes to measure concessionary leases at fair value and recognize revenue in accordance with
IPSAS 23 (see paragraphs BC112-BC114 for IPSASB’s reasons). Do you agree with the requirements to
account for concessionary leases for lessors and lessees proposed in this Exposure Draft? If not,
what changes would you make to those requirements.

Yes, we agree in principal with the proposed accounting requirements for concessionary
leases.

However, in the New Zealand context we are concerned with the financial impact that
this requirement will have on smaller lessor and lessee Tier 2 public benefit entities
(especially not-for-profit entities and those entities that have stepped-up into Tier 2 for
group reporting purposes). We question whether the cost will exceed benefits if the
proposed accounting requirements for concessionary leases remain in their current form
for these smaller entities.

Obtaining the fair value of the right to use assets on so-called “peppercorn leases” of
premises in particular will likely be a costly exercise as, in our experience, personnel at
smaller Tier 2 public benefit entities will probably not have the necessary expertise to
determine fair value, and instead will need to instruct external valuers in these matters,
(both lessors or lessees).

For smaller Tier 2 not-for-profit public benefit entities (in particular) the information
produced may not be of significant benefit to users of financial statements when
compared to the valuation costs incurred and the correspondent forfeiture of money
available to be spent on beneficiaries.

We therefore highly recommend that some sort of concession be included for smaller
public benefit entities in New Zealand. For example